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The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“U.S. Securities Act”) or any state securities laws in the United States of America and may not be offered or
sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, “U.S. Persons (as defined in Regulation S),
except pursuant to exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S.
Securities laws. Accordingly the Equity Shares are being offered and sold only outside the United States in
offshore transaction in reliance on Regulation S under the U.S Securities Act and the applicable laws of the
jurisdiction where those offers and sale occur.

The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered, listed or otherwise qualified in any other
jurisdiction outside India and may not be offered or sold, and application may not be made by persons in any
such jurisdiction, except in compliance with the applicable laws of such jurisdiction.
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SECTION I - GENERAL

DEFINITION AND ABBREVIATION

In this Red Herring Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms and abbreviations stated
hereunder shall have the meanings as assigned therewith.

COMPANY RELATED TERMS
Term Description

“Shree Ram Proteins Limited”

Shree Ram Proteins Limited, a Public Limited Company incorporated

Association

or “Shree Ram”, “SRPL” or | under the Companies Act, 1956

“the Company” ,or ‘“our

Company” or “we”, “us”, “our”,

or “Issuer” or the “Issuer

Company”

AOA/ Articles/ Articles of | Articles of Association of Shree Ram Proteins Limited, as amended from

time to time.

Audit Committee

The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as the Company’s
Audit Committee in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Bankers to the Company

Such banks which are disclosed as Bankers to the Company in the chapter
titled “General Information” on page 64 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Board of Directors/ the Board /
our Board/ Director(s)

The Board of Directors of Shree Ram Proteins Limited, including all duly
constituted Committee(s) thereof.

shareholders

Company Secretary and | The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of our Company being
Compliance Officer Bhupendra Bhadani
Equity Shareholders/

Persons/ Entities holding Equity Shares of our Company

Equity Shares

Equity Shares of our Company of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
unless otherwise specified in the context thereof

Group Companies

Such Companies as are included in the chapter titled ‘Our Group
Companies’ beginning on page 169 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Memorandum of Association

ISIN International Securities Identification Number. In this case being
INE0O08Z01012
MOA / Memorandum /| Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to

time.

Peer Reviewed Auditor

Independent Auditor having a valid Peer Review Certificate in our case
being M/s. N K. Aswani & Co.

Promoter Group

Persons and entities constitute our promoter group in terms of Regulation
2(1) (zb) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and as enlisted in the chapter
titled “Our Promoter and Promoter Group” beginning on page 165 of this
Red Herring Prospectus.

Registered Office

The Registered office of our Company situated at Imperial Heights Tower-
B, Second Floor, and Office No. B-206, 150 Ft Ring Road, Opp Big Bazar
Rajkot Gujarat 360005 India

RoC / Registrar of Companies

The Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat at ROC Bhavan , Opp
Rupal Park Society, Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura, Ahmedabad-
380013

Statutory Auditor / Auditor

The Statutory Auditor of our Company, being M/s H B Kalaria &
Associates

you, your or yours

Prospective investors in this Issue
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ISSUE RELATED TERMS

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to a Bidder
as proof of registration of the Bid.

Allotment Advice

Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the successful Bidders
who have been or are to be Allotted the Equity Shares after the Basis of
Allotment has been approved by the Designated Stock Exchange.

Allotment/ Allot/ Allotted

Issue and allotment of Equity Shares of our Company pursuant to the
Issue of the Equity Shares to successful Bidders

Allottee(s)

Successful  Bidders(s) to whom Equity Shares have been

allotted/transferred.

ASBA [/ Application Supported
by Blocked Amount

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by Bidders, to make
a Bid authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the ASBA
Account

ASBA Account

An account maintained with an SCSB and specified in the Bid cum
Application Form submitted by Bidders for blocking the Bid Amount
mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form

ASBA Application Location(s) /

Locations at which ASBA Applications can be uploaded by the SCSBs,

Specified Cities namely Mumbai, New Delhi, Chennai, Kolkata, Ahmedabad and Jaipur.
ASBA Bidders Any Bidder except Anchor Investor

ASBA  form/  Bid  cum An_appll_catlon for_m, whether phys_lcal_ or electronic, us_ed by Bldde(s
Application which will be considered as the application for Allotment in terms of this

Red Herring Prospectus.

Banker(s) to the Issue

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as
Banker to an Issue with whom the Public Issue Account will be opened
and in this case being ICICI Bank Limited.

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which Equity Shares will be Allotted to the successful
Bidders under the Issue and which is described under chapter titled
“Issue Procedure” beginning on page 220 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

Bid

An indication to make an issue during the Bid/lIssue Period by a Bidder
pursuant to submission of the Bid cum Application Form, to subscribe to
or purchase the Equity Shares at a price within the Price Band, including
all revisions and modifications thereto as permitted under the SEBI
ICDR Regulations in accordance with the Red Herring Prospectus and
Bid cum Application Form

Bid Amount

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application
Form and in the case of Retail Individual Bidders Bidding at Cut Off
Price, the Cap Price multiplied by the number of Equity Shares Bid for
by such Retail Individual Bidder and mentioned in the Bid cum
Application Form and payable by the Retail Individual Bidder or
blocked in the ASBA Account upon submission of the Bid in the Issue

Bid Cum Application Collecting
Intermediaries

1. a SCSB with whom the bank account to be blocked, is maintained

2. asyndicate member (or sub-syndicate member) If any

3. a stock broker registered with a recognized stock exchange (and
whose name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as
eligible for this activity)(‘broker’) if any

4. a depository participant (‘DP’) (whose name is mentioned on the
website of the stock exchange as eligible for this activity)

5. aregistrar to an issue and share transfer agent (‘RTA”) (whose name
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Term Description

is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for this
activity)

Bid cum Application form

The form used by a Bidder, to make a Bid and which will be considered
as the application for Allotment in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus

Bid Lot

[®]Equity shares and in multiples of [e] Equity Shares thereafter

Bid/ Issue Closing Date

The date after which the Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the
Registered Brokers will not accept any Bids, which shall be notified in
all editions of the English national newspaper Business Standard, all
edition of the Hindi national newspaper Business Standard, and Regional
newspaper Western Times, each with wide circulation and in case of any
revision, the extended Bid/lssue Closing Date shall also be notified on
the website and terminals of the Syndicate and SCSBs, as required under
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Bid/ Issue Opening Date

The date on which the Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the
Registered Brokers shall start accepting Bids, which shall be notified in
all editions of the English national newspaper Business Standrad, all
edition of the Hindi national newspaper Business Standard, and all
edition of the Regional newspaper Western Times, each with wide
circulation, and in case of any revision, the extended Bid/Issue Opening
Date also to be notified on the website and terminals of the Syndicate
and SCSBs, as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Bid/ Issue Period

The period between the Bid/lssue Opening Date and the Bid/lssue
Closing Date, inclusive of both days, during which Bidders can submit
their Bids, including any revisions thereof.

Bidder

Any prospective Resident Indian investor who makes a Bid pursuant to
the terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application
Form and unless otherwise stated or implied

Bidding/collecting Centre

Centres at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the Bid Cum
Application Forms, i.e., Designated SCSB Branch for SCSBs, Specified
Locations for Syndicate, Broker Centres for Registered Brokers,
Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and Designated CDP Locations for
CDPs

Book Building Process

Book building process, as provided in Schedule XI of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, in terms of which the Issue is being made

Book Running Lead Manager or
BRLM

The Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue namely Pantomath
Capital Advisors Private Limited, SEBI registered Category — |
Merchant Banker.

Broker Centres

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchanges, where the Bidders can
submit the Bid cum application forms to a Registered Broker. The
details of such broker centres, along with the names and contact details
of the Registered Brokers are available on the website of National Stock
Exchange of India Limited

CAN or Confirmation of

Allocation Note

The note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Bidder
indicating the Equity Shares which will be Allotted/ transferred, after
approval of Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange.

Cap Price The higher end of the Price Band, above which the Issue Price will not
be finalised and above which no Bids (or a revision thereof) will be
accepted

Client ID Client Identification Number maintained with one of the Depositories
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Term Description

in relation to demat account.

Collecting Depository | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996,
Participant or CDP registered with SEBI and who is eligible to procure Applications at the
Designated CDP  Locations in terms of circular  no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by
SEBI

Such branch of the SCSBs which coordinate Applications under this
Issue by the ASBA Applicants with the Registrar to the Issue and the
Stock Exchanges and a list of which is available at
http://www.sebi.gov.in or at such other website as may be prescribed by
SEBI from time to time

Cut-off Price Issue Price, which shall be any price within the Price Band finalised by
our Company in consultation with the BRLM.

Only Retail Individual Bidders are entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price.
QIBs and Non Institutional Bidders are not entitled to Bid at the Cut-off
Price.

The demographic details of the Bidders/Applicants such as their address,
PAN, occupation and bank account details

Depositories registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange

Controlling Branch/Designated
Branch

Demographic Details

Depositories Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996, as
amended from time to time, being NSDL and CDSL
Depository Participant A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996

The date on which the Collection Banks transfer funds from the public
issue accounts, and the SCSBs issue instructions for transfer of funds
from the ASBA Accounts, to the Public Issue Account or the Refund
Designated Date Account, as appropriate, in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus
following which the Board of Directors may Allot Equity Shares to
successful Bidders in the Fresh Issue may give delivery instructions for
the transfer of the respective Offered Shares.

Syndicate, Sub-Syndicate Members/agents, SCSBs, Registered Brokers,
Designated Intermediary(ies) CDPs and RTAs, who are authorized to collect Bid Cum Application
Forms from the Bidders, in relation to the Issue

Designated RTA Locations Such centres of the RTAs where Bidder can submit the Bid cum
Application Forms. The details of such Designated RTA Locations,
along with the names and contact details of the RTAs are available on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange (www.nseindia.com) and
updated from time to time

Designated Stock Exchange EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated November 14, 2017 issued in
accordance with section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013 and filed with
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited under SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, which does not contain complete particulars of the price at
which the Equity Shares will be Allotted and the size of the Issue
Eligible NRI NRIs from such jurisdiction outside India where it is not unlawful to
make an offer or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom this
Red Herring Prospectus constitutes an invitation to subscribe for the
Equity Shares offered herein on the basis of the terms thereof.

Bidder whose name shall be mentioned in the Bid cum Application
Form or the Revision Form and in case of joint Bids, whose name shall

DraftRed Herring Prospectus or
DRHP

First/sole Bidder
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Term Description

also appear as the first holder of the beneficiary account held in joint
names

Floor Price

The lower end of the Price Band, subject to any revision thereto, at or
above which the Issue Price will be finalised and below which no Bids
will be accepted

General Information Document

The General Information Document for investing in public issues
prepared and issued in accordance with the circular
(CIR/CFD/DIL/12/2013) dated October 23, 2013, notified by SEBI
suitably modified and included in “Issue Procedure” beginning on page
220 of Red Herring Prospectus.

Issue Agreement

The agreement dated November 14, 2017 between our Company and the
Book Running Lead Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements
are agreed to in relation to the Issue.

Issue Price

The final price at which Equity Shares will be Allotted in terms of the
Red Herring Prospectus. The Issue Price will be decided by our
Company in consultation with the BRLM on the Pricing Date in
accordance with the Book-Building Process and the Red Herring
Prospectus

Issue Proceeds

Proceeds to be raised by our Company through this Issue being Rs. [®]
lakhs, for further details please refer chapter title “Objects of the Issue”
beginning on page 89 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Issue/ Issue Size/ Initial Public
Issue/ Initial Public Offer/ Initial
Public Offering/ IPO

Public Issue upto 64,20,000 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10 each
fully paid of Shree Ram Proteins Limited for cash at a price of Rs. [e]
per Equity Share (the “Issue Price”) (including a premium of Rs. [@] per
Equity Share) aggregating up to Rs. [e] Lakhs.

Listing Agreement

The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed between our Company and
the EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Market Maker appointed by our Company from time to time, in this case
being Pantomath Stock Brokers Private Limited who has agreed to

Market Maker receive or deliver the specified securities in the market making process
for a period of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or
for any other period as may be notified by SEBI from time to time.

Market Maker  Reservation The Reserved Portlor_w of upto 3,24,000_Equ|ty Shares of face_value of

Portion Rs. 10 each fully paid for cash at a price of Rs [e] per Equity Share
aggregating Rs. [e] for the Market Maker in this Issue.

Market Making Agreement Market Making Agreement dated November 14, 2017 between our

Company, Book Running Lead Manager and Market Maker.

Mutual Fund(s)

A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds)
Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited
The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of upto
Net Issue 60,96,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid for cash

at a price of Rs [e] per Equity Share aggregating Rs. [e] by our
Company.

Net Proceeds

Proceeds of the Fresh Issue less our Company’s share of the Issue
expenses. For further information about use of the Issue Proceeds and
the Issue expenses, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 89 of this Red
Herring Prospectus

NIF

National Investment Fund set up by resolution F. No. 2/3/2005-DD-II
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Term Description

dated November 23, 2005 of Government of India published in the
Gazette of India

Non Institutional Bidders

All Bidders, including Category Ill FPIs that are not QIBs or Retail
Individual Investors, who have apply for Equity Shares for an amount of
more than Rs. 2,00,000 but not including NRIs other than Eligible NRIs

Non-Resident

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes
Flls and FPIs

OCB/ Overseas Corporate Body

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly
or indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs, including overseas
trusts in which not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably
held by NRIs directly or indirectly as defined under the Foreign
Exchange Management (Deposit) Regulations, 2000, as amended from
time to time. OCBs are not allowed to invest in this Issue

Other Investors

Investors other than Retail Individual Investors. These include
individual bidders/applicants other than retail individual investors and
other investors including corporate bodies or institutions irrespective of
the number of specified securities applied for.

Person/ Persons

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association,
unincorporated organization, body corporate, corporation, company,
partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or trust or any other
entity or organization validly constituted and/or incorporated in the
jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context requires

Price Band

Price band of a minimum price of Rs. [®] per Equity Share (Floor Price)
and the maximum price of Rs. [®] per Equity Share (Cap Price)
including revisions thereof.

The Price Band and the minimum Bid Lot size for the Issue will be
decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM and will be
advertised at least five Working Days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening
Date, in all edition of the English national newspaper Business Standard,
all edition of the Hindi national newspaper Business Standard and
Regional newspaper Western Times, each with wide circulation

Pricing date

The date on which our Company in consultation with the BRLM, will
finalise the Issue Price

Prospectus

The prospectus to be filed with the RoC after the Pricing Date in
accordance with Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI
ICDR Regulations containing, inter alia, the Offer Price that is
determined at the end of the Book Building Process, the size of the Offer
and certain other information

Red Herring Prospectus or RHP

The red herring prospectus to be issued in accordance with Section 32 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, which does not have complete particulars of the price at
which the Equity Shares will be issued and the size of the issue.

The red herring prospectus will be registered with the RoC at least three
days before the Bid/Offer Opening Date and will become the Prospectus
upon filing with the RoC after the Pricing Date

Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents or RTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to
procure Applications at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of
circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015
issued by SEBI
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Term Description

Registered Brokers

Stock brokers registered with the stock exchanges having nationwide
terminals, other than the BRLM and the Syndicate Members and eligible
to procure Bids in terms of Circular No. CIR/CFD/14/2012 dated
October 4, 2012 issued by SEBI

Reservation Portion

The portion of the Issue reserved for category of eligible Applicants as
provided under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2009

Registrar Agreement

The agreement dated November 14, 2017, entered by our Company and
the Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and
obligations of the Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the Issue

Reserved Category / Categories

Categories of persons eligible for making application under reservation
portion.

Investor) Regulations

Retail Individual Investors /| Individual applicants (including HUFs in the name of Karta and Eligible
Rlls NRIs) who have applied for an amount less than or equal to Rs. 2,00,000
in this Issue.
. The Form used by Applicants to modify the quantity of Equity Shares in
Revision Form . D . -
any of their Application Forms or any Previous Revision Form(s)
SEBI (Foreign Portfolio | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)

Regulations, 2014.

SEBI Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and includes the agreement
to be entered into between our Company and the Stock Exchange in
relation to listing of Equity Shares on such Stock Exchange.

Self Certified Syndicate Bank or
SCSB

A Bank which is registered with SEBI under SEBI (Bankers to an Issue)
Regulations, 1994 and offers services of ASBA including blocking of
bank  account, a list of  which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/detail/32791/no/List-of-Self-
Certified-Syndicate-Banks-under-the-ASBA-facility

SME Exchange

Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
approved by SEBI as an SME Exchange for listing of equity shares
offered under Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations

Specified Locations

Collection centres where the SCSBs shall accept application forms, a list
of which is available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and
updated from time to time.

Underwriter

Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited

Underwriting Agreement

The Agreement dated November 14, 2017 entered into between the
Underwriter and our Company.

Working Days

(i) Till Application / Issue closing date: All days other than a Saturday,
Sunday or a Public holiday;

(if)Post Application / Issue closing date and till the Listing of Equity
Shares: All trading days of stock exchanges excluding Sundays and
bank holidays in accordance with the SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26 dated January 21, 2016

TECHNICAL AND INDUSTRY RELATED TERMS

Term | Description
CCF Compounded Cattle Feed
CMP Chugoku Marine Paints
CPO Crude Palm Qil
CSO Central Statistics Office
DIPP Department of Industrial Policies and Promotion

Page 9 of 327



http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/detail/32791/no/List-of-Self-Certified-Syndicate-Banks-under-the-ASBA-facility
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/detail/32791/no/List-of-Self-Certified-Syndicate-Banks-under-the-ASBA-facility
http://www.sebi.gov.in/

Term | Description

EDP Entrepreneurship Development Programme
EPA Environmental Protection Agency

EPFO Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation

ESI Employee State Insurance

FAO Food and Agriculture Organization

FCNR Foreign Currency Non-Resident

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board

FSSAI Food Safety and Standards Authority of India
FY Financial Year

GCMMF Gujarat Cooperative Milk Marketing Federation
GDP Gross Domestic Product

GMP Good Hygienic Practices

GST Goods and Services Tax

GVA Gross Value Added

HACCP Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points
ICFNR Indian Council for Fertilizer and Nutrient Research
IMF International Monetary Fund

IVFA India Value Fund Advisors

MEIS Merchandise Exports from India Scheme
MoFPI Ministry of Food Processing Industries

M-SIPS Modified Special Incentive Package Scheme
MSME Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

MYEA Mid-Year Economic Analysis

PMGKY Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Yojana

RBI Reserve Bank of India

UDAY Ujwal DISCOM Assurance Yojana Scheme
UNIDO United Nations Industrial Development Organization
US/ U.S./ USA United States of America

WPI Wholesale Price Index

CONVENTIONAL AND GENERAL TERMS/ ABBREVIATIONS

Term Description

AY.JAY Assessment Year

AIC Account
AGM Annual General Meeting
AlF Alternative Investment Fund as defined in and registered with SEBI under the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds)
Regulations, 2012

A0A Articles of Association

AS/Accounting Standard Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India

ASBA Application Supported by Blocked Amount

BIFR Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

Category | Foreign Portfolio | FPIs who are registered as - Category | foreign portfolio investors under the
Investors SEBI FPI Regulations

Category I Foreign | FPIs who are registered as - Category Il foreign portfolio investors under the
Portfolio Investors SEBI FPI Regulations
Category i Foreign | FPIs who are registered as - Category Il foreign portfolio investors under the
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Term Description

Portfolio Investors

SEBI FPI Regulations

CcC Cash Credit

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited
CENVAT Central Value Added Tax

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CIN Corporate Identification Number

Cm Centimetre

CMD Chairman and Managing Director

Companies Act, 1956

Companies Act, 1956 (without reference to the provisions thereof that have
ceased to have effect upon notification of the Notified Sections) and the
Companies Act, 2013.

Companies Act, 2013

The Companies Act, 2013, to the extent in force pursuant to the notification
of the notified sections

CS Company Secretary
CEO Chief Executive Director
CST Central Sales Tax

Depositories

NSDL (National Securities Depository Limited) and CDSL (Central
Depository Services Limited); Depositories registered with the SEBI under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

DGFT

Directorate General of Foreign Trade

DIN Director Identification Number

DIPP Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion

DP Depository Participant

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identity

EBIDTA Earnings before interest, depreciation, tax, amortization and extraordinary
items

ECS Electronic Clearing System

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

EPFA The Employees‘ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

EPS Earnings Per Share

F.Y./[FY Financial Year

ESIC Employee State Insurance Corporation

ESOP Employee Stock Option Plan

ESPS Employee Stock Purchase Scheme

FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident Account

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999, as amended from time to time and

the regulations framed there under

FIl Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors)
Regulations, 1995, as amended from time to time.

FlI(s) Foreign Institutional Investor, as defined under the FIlI Regulations and
registered with the SEBI under applicable laws in India

FIPB The Foreign Investment Promotion Board, Ministry of Finance, Government
of India

Fls Financial Institutions

FPI(s) Foreign Portfolio Investor means a person who satisfies the eligibility criteria
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Term Description

prescribed under regulation 4 and has been registered under Chapter Il of
Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)
Regulations, 2014, which shall be deemed to be an intermediary in terms of
the provisions of the SEBI Act,1992

Ft Foot

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations,
2000

FV Face Value

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GIR Number General Index Registry number

Gol/ Government Government of India

HNI High Net worth Individual

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

I. T. Act The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended.

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

ICDR Regulations/ SEBI
Regulations/ SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations/Regulations

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as
amended from time to time

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

INR Indian National Rupee

IPO Initial Public Offering

IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority

IT Authorities Income Tax Authorities

IT Rules The Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended from time to time

Key Managerial Personnel /
KMP

The officers declared as a Key Managerial Personnel and as mentioned in the
chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page 149 of this Red Herring
Prospectus

KVA

Kilovolt-ampere

Listing Regulations / SEBI
Listing Regulations/ SEBI
(LODR) Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

SEBI VCF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations,
1996 as repealed pursuant to the SEBI AIF Regulations

LM Lead Manager

Ltd. Limited

MD Managing Director

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition

Mn Million

MoA Memorandum of Association

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of India
MoU Memorandum of Understanding

N/A or N.A. Not Applicable

NAV Net Asset Value

NBFC Non Banking Finance Company

Net Worth The aggregate of the paid up share capital, share premium account, and
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Term Description

reserves and surplus (excluding revaluation reserve) as reduced by the
aggregate of miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent not adjusted or written
off) and the debit balance of the profit and loss account

NI Act Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

NI Act Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

NOC No Objection Certificate

NR Non Resident

NRE Account Non Resident (External) Account

NRI Non Resident Indian, is a person resident outside India, who is a citizen of
India or a person of Indian origin and shall have the same meaning as
ascribed to such term in the Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit)
Regulations, 2000, as amended from time to time

NRO Account Non Resident (Ordinary) Account

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

ocB Overseas Corporate Bodies

p.a. per annum

P/E Ratio Price Earnings Ratio

PAN Permanent Account Number

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

Pwvt. Private

Pwvt. Private

QlIB Qualified Institutional Buyer

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended from time to time

RoC Registrar of Companies

RoNW Return on Net Worth

Rs./INR Indian Rupees

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 as amended from time to time

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SCSB Self Certified Syndicate Bank

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to
time

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds)
Regulations, 2012

SEBI FIl Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors)
Regulations, 1995

SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)
Regulations, 2014

SEBI FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors)
Regulations, 2000

SEBI Insider  Trading | The SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended

Regulations from time to time, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI
from time to time

SEBI Takeover Regglatlons Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

/Takeover Regulations / -
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

Takeover Code
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Term Description

Sec Section

SICA Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, as amended from
time to time

SME Small Medium Enterprise

SSI Undertaking

Small Scale Industrial Undertaking

Stock Exchange (s)

Emerge platform of National Stock Exchange of India

STT

Securities Transaction Tax

Sub-Account

Sub-accounts registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Institutional
Investor) Regulations, 1995, other than sub-accounts which are foreign
corporate or foreign individuals.

TAN Tax Deduction Account Number

TIN Taxpayers Identification Number

TNW Total Net Worth

TRS Transaction Registration Slip

U.S. GAAP Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
u/s Under Section

UIN Unique Identification Number

uUol Union of India

US/US. /- USA/United United States of America

States

USD/US$/$ United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America
VAT Value Added Tax

VCF / Venture Capital Fund

Foreign Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996) registered with
SEBI under applicable laws in India.

w.e.f. With effect from
WDV Written Down Value
WTD Whole-time Director
YoY Year over year

Notwithstanding the following: -

i. In the section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association” beginning on page 273 of this Red
Herring Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

ii. In the section titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 172 of this Red Herring Prospectus,
defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

iii. In the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 18 of this Red Herring Prospectus, defined terms
shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

iv. In the chapter titled “Statement of Possible Tax Benefits” beginning on page 97 of this Red Herring
Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that chapter; and

In the chapter titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” beginning on page 173 of this Red Herring Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning
given to such terms in that chapter.

Page 14 of 327




PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

All references to “India” are to the Republic of India and all references to the “Government” are to the
Government of India.

FINANCIAL DATA

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data included in this Red Herring Prospectus are extracted from the
restated financial statements of our Company, prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as stated in the
report of our Peer Reviewed Auditor, set out in the section titled “Financial Statements as Restated”
beginning on page 172 this Red Herring Prospectus. Our restated financial statements are derived from our
audited financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act, and have
been restated in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Our fiscal year commences on April 1% of each year and ends on March 31% of the next year. All references to
a particular fiscal year are to the 12 month period ended March 31% ° that year. In this Red Herring
Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to
rounding-off. All decimals have been rounded off to two decimal points.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and US GAAP. The Company has not
attempted to quantify their impact on the financial data included herein and urges you to consult your own
advisors regarding such differences and their impact on the Company’s financial data. Accordingly to what
extent, the financial statements included in this Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful information
is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices / Indian GAAP. Any
reliance by persons not familiar with Indian Accounting Practices on the financial disclosures presented in this
Red Herring Prospectus should accordingly be limited.

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus
unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated on the basis of the Company’s restated financial statements
prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, Indian GAAP and restated in
accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as stated in the report of our Peer Reviewed Auditor, set out in the
section titled “Financial Statements as Restated”” beginning on page 172 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

In this Red Herring Prospectus, references to “Rupees” or “Rs.” or “INR” are to Indian Rupees, the official
currency of the Republic of India. All references to “$”, “US$”, “USD”, “U.S. $”or “U.S. Dollars” are to
United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of America.

All references to ‘million’ / ‘Million’ / ‘Mn’ refer to one million, which is equivalent to ‘ten lacs’ or ‘ten
lakhs’, the word ‘Lacs / Lakhs / Lac’ means ‘one hundred thousand’ and ‘Crore’ means ‘ten million’ and
‘billion / bn./ Billions’ means ‘one hundred crores’.

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, Industry and Market data and various forecasts used throughout this Red Herring
Prospectus have been obtained from publically available information, Industry Sources and Government
Publications.

Industry Sources as well as Government Publications generally state that the information contained in those
publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness and
underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured.

Although we believe that industry data used in this Red Herring Prospectus is reliable, it has not been
independently verified by the Book Running Lead Manager or our Company or any of their affiliates or
advisors. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on
various factors, including those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 18 of this
Red Herring Prospectus. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely on such information.
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Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in this Red Herring Prospectus is
meaningful depends on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in
compiling such data. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct
our business, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT
This Red Herring Prospectus contains certain “forward-looking statements”. These forward looking

2 4¢ 9 G

statements can generally be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”,
“estimate”, “intend”, “objective”, “plan”, “project”, “shall”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue” or other
words or phrases of similar meaning. Similarly, statements that describe our strategies, objectives, plans or
goals are also forward-looking statements. All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties
and assumptions about us that could cause actual results and property valuations to differ materially from

those contemplated by the relevant forward looking statement.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are not
limited to the following:-

» General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional,
national and international economies;

» Changes in laws and regulations relating to the sectors/areas in which we operate;

* Increased competition in the Industry which we operate;

»  Factors affecting the Industry in which we operate;

« Our ability to meet our capital expenditure requirements;

* Fluctuations in operating costs;

«  Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

» Changes in political and social conditions in India, the monetary and interest rate policies of India and
other countries;

» Inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices;

» The performance of the financial markets in India and globally;

» Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved;

» Our failure to keep pace with rapid changes in technology;

»  The occurrence of natural disasters or calamities;

«  Other factors beyond our control;

« Our ability to manage risks that arise from these factors;

« Conflict of Interest with affiliated companies, the promoter group and other related parties; and

« Changes in government policies and regulatory actions that apply to or affect our business.

For a further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, refer to section titled “Risk
Factors” and chapter titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” beginning on pages 18 and 173 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus. By their nature,
certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs
in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been
estimated.

Future looking statements speak only as of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. Neither we, our Directors,
Book Running Lead Manager, Underwriter nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update
or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the
occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance
with SEBI requirements, the BRLM and our Company will ensure that investors in India are informed of
material developments until the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchange.
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SECTION II- RISK FACTOR

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the
information in this Red Herring Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before
making an investment in our Equity Shares. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely
on their own examination of our Company and the terms of this offer including the merits and risks involved.
Any potential investor in, and subscriber of, the Equity Shares should also pay particular attention to the fact
that we are governed in India by a legal and regulatory environment in which some material respects may be
different from that which prevails in other countries. The risks and uncertainties described in this section are
not the only risks and uncertainties we currently face. Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or
that we currently deem immaterial may also have an adverse effect on our business. If any of the following
risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually occur, our business,
results of operations and financial condition could suffer, the price of our Equity Shares could decline, and
you may lose all or part of your investment. Additionally, our business operations could also be affected by
additional factors that are not presently known to us or that we currently consider as immaterial to our
operations.

Unless otherwise stated in the relevant risk factors set forth below, we are not in a position to specify or
guantify the financial or other implications of any of the risks mentioned herein. Unless otherwise stated, the
financial information of our Company used in this section is derived from our restated financial statements
prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations. To obtain a better understanding, you should read this section in conjunction with the
chapters titled “Our Business” beginning on page 123, “Our Industry” beginning on page 100 and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning on
page 173 respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus as well as other financial information contained herein.

The following factors have been considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors:

. Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;
. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively;
. Some events may not be material at present but may have material impact in future.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever guantifiable, have been disclosed in
the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable
and hence the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. Unless otherwise stated, the financial
information of the Company used in this section is derived from our financial statements under Indian GAAP,
as restated in this Red Herring Prospectus. Unless otherwise stated, we are not in a position to specify or
guantify the financial or other risks mentioned herein. For capitalized terms used but not defined in this
chapter, refer to the chapter titled “Definitions and Abbreviation” beginning on page 03 of this Red Herring
Prospectus. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and
does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another.

The risk factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding:
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS:

BUSINESS SPECIFIC RISKS

1. Currently our Company, Promoter and Director is also involved in certain tax related proceedings;
any adverse decision in such proceedings may render us liable to liabilities and penalties and may
adversely affect our business and results of operations.
Also, there is no assurance that in future, we, our promoters, our directors or group companies may not
face legal proceedings; any adverse decision in such legal proceedings may impact our business. For
further details in relation to legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters, Directors, Group
Company and Subsidiaries see the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on
page 187 of this Prospectus.
A classification of legal proceedings is mentioned below:

Name of | Criminal | Civil/ Tax Labour | Consumer | Complaint | Aggregat
Entity Proceedi | Arbitration | Proceeding | Dispute | Complaint | s under | e amount
ngs Proceeding | s S S Section involved
S 138 of NI | (Rs. In
Act, 1881 lakhs)
Company
By the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Company
Against the | Nil Nil 2 Nil Nil Nil 1.29
Company
Promoters
By the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Against  the | Nil Nil 2 Nil Nil Nil 0.73
Promoter
Group Companies
By  Group | N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Companies
Against N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Group
Companies
Directors other than promoters
By the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
Against the | Nil Nil 2 Nil Nil Nil 16.65
Directors
Subsidiaries
By the | N.A* | N.A. | N.A. INA. [ NA | N.A. | N.A.
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Subsidiaries

Against the | N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Subsidiaries

*N.A. = Not Applicable

Our business is dependant on the availability/supply and cost of raw materials i.e Cotton Seeds . Any
significant increase in the prices or decrease in the availability of these raw materials may adversely affect
our results of operations.

Our main raw material is Cotton Seeds, and it forms a significant portion of our total expenses. As on date we
do not have any long term tie up or agreements for supply of this raw material. Any decrease in the
availability of this raw material for whatever reason, including climatic change, could adversely affect our
sales and profitability. Further, any price volatility of this raw material and our inability to adjust to the same
could adversely affect our results of operations and profitability.

Our business is not seasonal in nature, but the availability of raw material is seasonal in nature and hence
we require substantial working capital.

The business in which our Company is engaged in not seasonal, however, the availability raw materials are
seasonal in nature. Our Company has made adequate arrangement for warehousing to store raw material. The
warehousing of raw material to counter its non availability during off season requires substantial investment
of our working capital in the inventories.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from our animal feed business and any reduction in demand
or in the production of such products could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from our animal feed business, which primarily comprises the
sale of cotton seed de-oil cake, cotton seed husk/hulls, cotton seeds oil cake and Ground nuts oil cake. For the
financial years 2017, 2016 and 2015, our revenue from our animal feed business was Rs. 7580.05 Lakhs, Rs.
2,286.13 and Rs. 1,224.5 lakhs i.e 48.11%, 12.49% and 7.02%respectively of our revenue from operations.
Consequently, any reduction in demand or a temporary or permanent discontinuation of processing of such
products could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition

We primarily source our raw material from ginning mills and traders network and we have not entered into
formalized agreements with them. Any disruption in the supply chain might affect our production processes
and consequently our results of operations

We procure our raw materials from ginning mills and traders network. While we have long term relationships
with many of them, we have not entered into any supply contracts with such parties to ensure regular and
timely supplies of raw material. In the event our suppliers default in the supply of the raw material required by
us, we may have limited legal recourse against them or we shall not be in a position to demand specific
performance. We are unable to assure you, in case of such an event, we shall be able to identify alternative
source of supply in time. Such disruption in the supply chain would delay our production process and
consequently, our results of operations.

Our Company’s inability to maintain distribution network can adversely affect our revenues.

We sell our products with the help of distribution network of various dealers/retailers/distributors. The
distribution network sells our products to end users. Our inability to maintain our existing distribution network
or to expand it further, can adversely affect our growth and revenues. In case, if we are not able to market our
manufactured products, it may affect our operations and profitability adversely.

Our Company do not have any long-term contracts with our customers which may adversely affect our
results of operations.

Our Company neither have any long-term contract with any of our buyers/distributors nor any marketing tie
up for our products with any of retail chain operators etc. Any change in the buying pattern of our end users
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can adversely affect the business of our Company. Our inability to sell our existing products may adversely
affect our business and profitability in future.

Our Company’s failure to maintain the quality standards of the products could adversely impact our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Any failure to maintain the quality standards may affect our business. Although we have put in place strict
quality control procedures, we cannot assure that our products will always be able to satisfy quality standards.
Any negative publicity regarding our Company, or products, including those arising from any deterioration in
guality of our products from our vendors, or any other unforeseen events could adversely affect our
reputation, our operations and our results from operations. Introduction of new products or for any other
reason and failure on our part to meet their expectation could adversely affect our business, result of
operations and financial condition. While, we believe that we have always introduced new products to cater to
the growing demand of our customers and also endeavour regularly to update our products, our failure to
anticipate or to respond adequately to changing market demands and/or consumer requirements could
adversely affect our business and financial results.

. Our Company requires significant amounts of working capital for a continued growth. Our inability to
meet our working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business is working capital intensive. A significant portion of our working capital is utilized towards trade
receivables and inventories. Summary of our working capital position is given below:-

Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31,

]

Particulars

Sggf‘zrgffr 2017 2016 2015

A. Current Assets

a. Inventories 3712.79 3700.07 3186.38 | 2942.14 | 3032.13 | 2328.81
b. Trade Receivables 2805.32 3789.38 3721.67 | 5814.40 | 1770.18 | 470.87
c. Cash and Bank Balances 11.84 9.58 31.83 26.06 | 132.35| 109.16
d. Short Term Loans & Advances 107.34 77.67 109.65 | 106.13 | 143.75| 473.87
Sub Total A 6637.28 7576.70 7049.53 | 8888.73 | 5078.41 | 3382.70
B. Current Liabilities

a. Trade Payables 794.14 2021.51 1343.69 | 2864.46 53.74 | 323.13
b. Other Current Liabilities 30.82 69.32 158.65 | 1016.70 | 210.62 0.88
c. Short Term Provisions 37.18 12.85 18.99 34.08 24.09 0.60
Sub Total B 862.14 2103.68 1521.33 | 3915.23 | 288.45 324.60
Working Capital (A-B) 5775.15 5473.02 | 5528.19 | 4973.49 | 4789.97 | 3058.10
lﬂ‘ﬁgﬁ:gﬁ:&‘g % of total 55.94% 48.83% | 45.20% | 33.10% | 59.71% | 68.84%
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Trade receivables as % of total

50.01%
current assets

‘ 42.27% 52.79% | 65.41% | 34.86% | 13.92%

We usually supply products on credit to our clients. Our working capital requirement may increase if our
credit period is increased or raw material prices are increased etc. All these factors may result in increase in
the quantum of current assets particularly inventories and trade receivables.

In the event, we are required to repay any working capital facilities upon receipt of a demand from any lender;
we may be unable to satisfy our working capital requirements. Further, our inability to maintain sufficient
cash flow, credit facility and other sources of fund, in a timely manner, or at all, to meet the requirement of
working capital or pay out debts, could adversely affect our financial condition and result of our operations.
For further details regarding working capital requirement, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the
Issue” beginning on page 89 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

10.Qurs is a high volume-low margin business

Ours is a high volume low margin business. Our inability to regularly grow our turnover and effectively
execute our key business processes could lead to lower profitability and hence adversely affect our operating
results, debt service capabilities and financial conditions. Due to the nature of the products we sell, we may
not be able to charge higher margins on our products. Hence, our business model is heavily reliant on our
ability to effectively grow our turnover and manage our key processes including but not limited to
procurement of raw material/ traded goods, timely sales / order execution and continuous cost control of non
core activities.

For the financial year 2016-17, 2015-16, 2014-15; our total revenue was Rs. 15,780.08 lakhs, Rs. 18,357.51
lakhs and Rs.17,466.60 lakhs respectively. Our profit before tax Margin and profit after tax margin was lower
than or around 1% for each period.

The table below gives details of our operating margins and net profit margin based on restated financials

Total Income (Rs in lakhs) 487159 | 15780.08 | 18357.51 | 17466.60 | 15754.09 | 11612.63
PBT Margins (%) 1.14% | 061%| 041%| 069%| 070% | -0.33%
PAT Margins (%) 0.80% | 0.42%| 028%| 078%| 082%| -0.54%

As part of our growth strategy, we aim to improve our functional efficiency and expand our business
operations. Our growth strategy is subject to and involves risks and difficulties, many of which are beyond our
control and, accordingly, there can be no assurance that we will be able to implement our strategy or growth
plans, or complete them within the timelines. Further, we operate in a dynamic industry, and on account of
changes in market conditions, industry dynamics, technological improvements or changes and any other
relevant factors, our growth strategy and plans may undergo changes or modifications, and such changes or
modifications may be substantial, and may even include limiting or foregoing growth opportunities if the
situation so demands.

For further details regarding the discussions and explanations for our past results, please refer to the chapter
titled “Management’s Discussions and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning
on page 173 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

11.0ur Inventories may be damaged if it is exposed to fire or water and the insurance may not fully
compensate the loss.

The Company’s inventory could suffer damage from fire or water or other causes, resulting in losses, which
may not be fully compensated by insurance. In addition, there are certain types of losses, such as those due to
earthquakes, floods, hurricanes, terrorism or acts of war, which may be uninsurable or are not insurable at a
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reasonable premium. The proceeds of any insurance claim may be insufficient to cover rebuilding costs as a
result of inflation, changes in building regulations, environmental issues as well as other factors.

Our Company faces stiff competition in our business from organized and unorganized players, which may
adversely affect our business operation and financial condition.

Most of the end-users are price conscious. Pricing is one of the factors that play an important role in selection
of our products. The market for our products is highly competitive on account of both the organized and
unorganized players. Some of our competitors may have longer industry experience and greater financial,
technical and other resources, which may enable them to react faster in changing market scenario and remain
competitive. Growing competition may result in a decline in our market share and may affect our margins.

The shortage or non-availability of power and fuel may adversely affect the manufacturing processes and
our performance may be affected adversely.

The manufacturing processes of our Company require substantial amount of power and fuel. Our
manufacturing facilities may face power interruptions due to power cuts and as a result our operations or
financial condition may be adversely affected. The shortage of electricity supply may increase our dependency
on the usage of generator sets. The same can increase our cost of power and may have an adverse impact on
our profitability.

Technological obsolescence may result in our operation as unviable or may require capital investments
which may have an adverse effect on our performance.

Any changes in technology may render our existing Plant & Machineries obsolete or we may have to incur
substantial capital investment to upgrade our Plant & Machineries, which may adversely affect the
performance of our Company.

We may not be sufficiently protected or insured for certain losses that we may incur or claims that we may
face against us.

Although we attempt to limit and mitigate our liability for damages arising from negligent acts, errors or
omissions through insurance policies, the limitations of liability set forth in our insurance policies may not be
enforceable in all instances or may not protect us from liability for damages. These may lead to financial
liability and other adverse consequences for us. Further, even where we have availed of insurance cover, we
may not be able to successfully assert our claims for any liability or loss under such insurance policies. This
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation.

We have limited production capabilities. As a result, we might be unable to market our products in an
aggressive fashion.

We have production facilities at Gujarat only, though currently our products are being sold in Haryana,
Karnataka, Maharashtra, Punjab, Rajasthan, Uttarakhand, Andhra Pradesh and Madhya Pradesh, we might
have to face stiff competition and might not be able to market our products in an aggressive fashion for
various reasons, which might effect our results of operations and might impede our growth prospects.

Our industry is labour intensive and our business operations may be materially adversely affected by
strikes, work stoppages or increased wage demands by our employees or those of our suppliers.

Our industry being labour intensive is highly dependent on labour force for carrying out its manufacturing
operations. Shortage of skilled/unskilled personnel or work stoppages caused by disagreements with
employees could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations. We have not experienced
any major disruptions in our business operations due to disputes or other problems with our work force in the
past; however there can be no assurance that we will not experience such disruptions in the future. Such
disruptions may adversely affect our business and results of operations and may also divert the management's
attention and result in increased costs.

India has stringent labour legislation that protects the interests of workers, including legislation that sets forth

detailed procedures for the establishment of unions, dispute resolution and employee removal and legislation
that imposes certain financial obligations on employers upon retrenchment. We are also subject to laws and
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regulations governing relationships with employees, in such areas as minimum wage and maximum working
hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring and terminating of employees and work permits. Although our
employees are not currently unionized, there can be no assurance that they will not unionize in the future. If
our employees unionize, it may become difficult for us to maintain flexible labour policies, and we may face
the threat of labour unrest, work stoppages and diversion of our management's attention due to union
intervention, which may have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Further due to increased competition for skilled employees in India over the last few years, we may need to
increase our levels of employee compensation rapidly to remain competitive in attracting the best possible
talent which may result in increased costs and affect our profitability.

Our Company has made non compliances and lapsed/made delay in certain filings under various Statutory
Acts applicable to it in the past years.

Our Company has in past contravened provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, our Company has also
lapsed/ made delay in certain filings under various Statutory Acts applicable to it in the past years. Due to
these delays in filings, our Company had on several occasions paid the requisite late fees. Although they have
not been furnished with any notices by the RoC/any other statutory authority with respect to this non-
compliance, such non-compliance may in the future render us liable to statutory penalties and could have
serious consequences on our operations. While this could be attributed to technical lapses and human errors,
our Company has now appointed a whole time Company Secretary to set up a system to ensure that requisite
filings are done within the applicable timelines.

We generally do business with our customers on purchase order basis and do not enter into long term
contracts with most of them.

Our business is dependent on our continuing relationships with our customers. Our Company neither has any
long-term contract with any of customers. Any change in the buying pattern of our end users or disassociation
of major customers can adversely affect the business of our Company. The loss of or interruption of work by,
a significant customer or a number of significant customers or the inability to procure new orders on a regular
basis or at all may have an adverse effect on our revenues, cash flows and operations.

Certain agreements may be inadequately stamped or may not have been registered as a result of which our
operations may be impaired.

Few of our agreements may not be stamped adequately or registered. The effect of inadequate stamping is that
the document is not admissible as evidence in legal proceedings and parties to that agreement may not be able
to legally enforce the same, except after paying a penalty for inadequate stamping. The effect of non-
registration, in certain cases, is to make the document inadmissible in legal proceedings. Any potential dispute
due to inadequate stamping may adversely affect our operations.

Our company is highly dependent on third party logistics services for the delivery of our raw materials/
finished products and any disruption in their operations or a decrease in the quality of their services could
affect our Company’s reputation and results of operations

Our Company uses third party transportation providers for delivery of our raw materials and finished
products. Though our business has not experienced any disruptions due to transportation strikes in the past,
any future transportation strikes may have an adverse effect on our business. These transportation facilities
may not be adequate to support our existing and future operations. In addition raw materials/ finished products
may be lost or damaged in transit for various reasons including occurrence of accidents or natural disasters.
There may also be delay in delivery of products which may also affect our business and results of operation
negatively. An increase in the freight costs or unavailability of freight for transportation of our raw materials
may have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Further, disruptions of transportation services due to weather-related problems, strikes, lock-outs,
inadequacies in the road infrastructure and port facilities, or other events could impair ability to procure raw
materials or deliver finished goods on time. Any such disruptions could materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We require a number of approvals, NOCs, licences, registrations and permits in the ordinary course of
our business. Some of the approvals are required to be transferred in the name of “Shree Ram Proteins
Limited” from “Shree Ram Proteins Private Limited” pursuant to name change of our company and
any failure or delay in obtaining the same in a timely manner may adversely affect our operations.

We require a number of approvals, licenses, registrations and permits in ordinary course of our business.
Additionally, we need to apply for renewal of approvals which expire, from time to time, as and when
required in the ordinary course. Also, we were a private limited company in the name of “Shree Ram
Proteins Private Limited” which was carrying business of of cotton seeds solvent extraction plant as well
dealing in cotton seeds, cotton seeds, oil cake, cotton processing, linter, de linter and import and export of the
same. As per Companies Act, 1956/2013, a private limited company can be converted into public limited
company. After complying with the relevant procedure of Companies Act, 1956/2013, the said private limited
company was converted into a public limited company in the year 2017. After conversion there was change of
name of the company from “Shree Ram Proteins Private Limited” to “Shree Ram Proteins Limited”. We
shall be taking necessary steps for transferring the approvals in new name of our company. In case we fail to
transfer/obtain the same in name of the company same may adversely affect our business or we may not be
able to carry our business

Approvals like TAN allotment letter, Employees’ Provident Fund Registration Certificate are currently not
traceable by the company. The company has also applied for change of hame of these approvals. In case of
delay or failure to obtain the same, it could affect our business operations. Any failure to renew the approvals
that have expired, or to apply for and obtain the required approvals, licences, registrations or permits, or any
suspension or revocation of any of the approvals, licences, registrations and permits that have been or may be
issued to us, could result in delaying the operations of our business, which may adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects. For more information, see chapter “Government and
Other Statutory Approvals” on page 193 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

We depend on certain brand names and our corporate name and logo that we may not be able to protect
and/or maintain.

Our ability to market and sell our products depends upon the recognition of our brand names and associated
consumer goodwill. Currently, we do for our own nor our corporate name and logo under the Trade Marks
Act, 1999. Consequently, we do not enjoy the statutory protections accorded to registered trademarks in India
for the corporate name and logo of our company, which are currently pending. In the absence of such
registrations, competitors and other companies may challenge the validity or scope of our intellectual property
right over these brands or our corporate name or logo. As a result, we may be required to invest significant
resources in developing new brands or names, which could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In addition to same, our failure to comply with existing or increased regulations, or the introduction of
changes to existing regulations, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects. We cannot assure you that the approvals, licences, registrations and permits issued to us would
not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any terms or
conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action.

The material approvals, licences or permits required for our business include trade licence, tax laws,
environment laws and shops and establishment licences, as applicable. See “Government and other Statutory
Approvals” on page 193 of this Red Herring Prospectus for further details on the required material approvals
for the operation of our business.

We may not be successful in implementing our business strategies.

The success of our business depends substantially on our ability to implement our business strategies
effectively. Even though we have successfully executed our business strategies in the past, there is no
guarantee that we can implement the same on time and within the estimated budget going forward, or that we
will be able to meet the expectations of our targeted clients. Further, changes in regulations applicable to us
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may also make it difficult to implement our business strategies. Failure to implement our business strategies in
time or at all would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Our trademark is not registered and as such we may not be able to effectively protect our intellectual
property.

We operate in an extremely competitive environment, where generating brand recognition is significant
element of our business strategy. Currently our Logo is not registered with any certifying authority and
therefore we do not enjoy the statutory protection accorded to a registered trademark and are subject to the
various risks arising out of the same, including but not limited to infringement or passing off our name and
logo by a third party. As our logo is not registered, we would not enjoy the statutory protections accorded to a
registered trademark and our ability to use our logo may be impaired. For further details please refer to section
titled “Government and Other Approvals” beginning on page 193 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

If we are unable to source business opportunities effectively, we may not achieve our financial objectives.

Our ability to achieve our financial objectives will depend on our ability to identify, evaluate and accomplish
business opportunities. To grow our business, we will need to hire, train, supervise and manage new
employees and to implement systems capable of effectively accommodating our growth. However, we cannot
assure you that any such employees will contribute to the success of our business or that we will implement
such systems effectively. Our failure to source business opportunities effectively could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. It also is possible that the
strategies used by us in the future may be different from those presently in use. No assurance can be given that
our analyses of market and other data or the strategies we use or plans in future to use will be successful under
various market conditions.

Failure to manage our inventory could have an adverse effect on our net sales, profitability, cash flow and
liquidity.

The results of operations of our business are dependent on our ability to effectively manage our inventory and
stocks. To effectively manage our inventory, we must be able to accurately estimate customer demand and
supply requirements and manufacture new inventory accordingly. If our management has misjudged expected
customer demand it could adversely impact the results by causing either a shortage of products or an
accumulation of excess inventory. Further, if we fail to sell the inventory we manufacture, we may be required
to write-down our inventory or pay our suppliers without new purchases or create additional vendor financing,
which could have an adverse impact on our income and cash flows. Any increase in sales return beyond the
standard levels, may also result in accumulation of inventories and consequently impact our cash flows.

Our lenders have charge over our movable properties in respect of finance availed by us.

We have secured our lenders by creating a charge over our movable properties in respect of loans / facilities
availed by us from banks and financial institutions. The total amounts outstanding and payable by us as
secured loans were Rs. 3100.00 lakhs as on September 30, 2017. In the event we default in repayment of the
loans / facilities availed by us and any interest thereof, our properties may be forfeited by lenders, which in
turn could have significant adverse affect on business, financial condition or results of operations. For further
information on the “Financial Indebtedness” please refer page 184 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Company has unsecured loans which are repayable on demand. Any demand from lenders for
repayment of such unsecured loans, may adversely affect our cash flows.

As at September 30, 2017 and March 31, 2017 our Company has unsecured loans amounting to Rs. 1,700.21
lakhs and Rs. 1,497.92 lakhs respectively from certain individuals and entities, including promoters and
members of promoter group, that are repayable on demand to the relevant lenders. Such loans are not
repayable in accordance with any agreed repayment schedule and may be recalled by the relevant lenders at
any time. Any such unexpected demand or accelerated repayment may have a material adverse effect on the
business, cash flows and financial condition of the borrower against which repayment is sought. Any demand
from lenders for repayment of such unsecured loans, may adversely affect our cash flows.
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For further details of unsecured loans of our Company, please refer ‘Annexure VII’ ‘Details of Long Term
Borrowings as Restated’ of chapter titled “Financial Statements as restated” beginning on page 172 of this
Red Herring Prospectus.

Our lenders have imposed certain restrictive conditions on us under our financing arrangements.

We have entered into agreements for availing debt facilities from lenders. Certain covenants in these
agreements require us to obtain approval/permission from our lenders in certain conditions. In the event of
default or the breach of certain covenants, our lender has the option to make the entire outstanding amount
payable immediately. Further certain agreements also impose financial and other restrictive covenants such as
maintenance of financial ratios, submission of results, etc. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
comply with the financial or other covenants or that we will be able to obtain the consents necessary to take
the actions we believe are necessary to operate and grow our business. Our level of existing debt and any new
debt that we incur in the future has important consequences. Any failure to comply with these requirements or
other conditions or covenants under our financing agreements that is not waived by our lenders or is not
otherwise cured by us, may require us to repay the borrowing in whole or part and may include other related
costs. Our Company may be forced to sell some or all of its assets or limit our operations. This may adversely
affect our ability to conduct our business and impair our future growth plans. Though these covenants are
restrictive to some extent for us, however it ensures financial discipline, which would help us in the long run
to improve our financial performance.

For further information, see the chapter titled “Financial Indebtedness” on page 184 of the Red Herring
Prospectus.

Our insurance policies do not cover all risks, specifically risks like product defect/liability risk, loss of
profits and terrorism. In the event of the occurrence of such events, our insurance coverage may not
adequately protect us against possible risk of loss.

Our Company has obtained insurance coverage in respect of certain risks. Our significant insurance policies
consist of, among others, standard fire and special perils. While we believe that we maintain insurance
coverage in adequate amounts consistent with size of our business, our insurance policies do not cover all
risks, specifically risks like product defect/liability risk, loss of profits, losses due to terrorism, etc. There can
be no assurance that our insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses in respect of which the
insurance has been availed. If we suffer a significant uninsured loss or if insurance claim in respect of the
subject-matter of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss suffered by us significantly exceeds our
insurance coverage, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and
adversely affected.

Our success depends largely upon the services of our Promoters, Directors and other Key Managerial
Personnel and our ability to attract and retain them. Demand for Key Managerial Personnel in the industry
is intense and our inability to attract and retain Key Managerial Personnel may affect the operations of our
Company.

Over the years, our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel have built strong relations with clients,
employees and other business associates. Our success is substantially dependent on the expertise and services
of our Directors and our Key Managerial Personnel. They provide expertise which enables us to make well
informed decisions in relation to our business and our future prospects. Our future performance will depend
upon the continued services of these persons. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain any or all, or
that our succession planning will help to replace, the key members of our management. The loss of the
services of such key members of our management team and the failure of any succession plans to replace such
key members could have an adverse effect on our business and the results of our operations.

In addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses, some of our Directors and
key managerial personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding and dividend
entitlement in our Company

Our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of remuneration
paid to them for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses payable to them. In addition, some of our
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel may also be interested to the extent of their shareholding, loan given
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by them and dividend entitlement in our Company. For further information, see “Capital Structure” and “Our
Management” on pages 74 and 149, respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our ability to pay dividends will depend upon future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working
capital requirements, capital expenditures and other factors.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a
result, we may not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration
and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that
our Board of Directors deem relevant, including among others, our results of operations, financial condition,
cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements. Additionally, under some of our
loan agreements, we may not be permitted to declare any dividends, if there is a default under such loan
agreements or unless our Company has paid all the dues to the lender up to the date on which the dividend is
declared or paid or has made satisfactory provisions thereof. Accordingly, realization of a gain on
shareholders investments may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our Equity Shares. There
can be no assurance that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value. For details of our dividend history, see
“Dividend Policy” on page 171 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our future funds requirements, in the form of fresh issue of capital or securities and/or loans taken by us,
may be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they are
eventually raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any fresh issue of
shares or convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such issuance
may be done on terms and conditions, which may not be favourable to the then existing shareholders. If such
funds are raised in the form of loans or debt, then it may substantially increase our interest burden and
decrease our cash flows, thus prejudicially affecting our profitability and ability to pay dividends to our
shareholders.

We have not entered into any technical support service for the maintenance and smooth functioning of our
equipment’s and machineries, which may affect our performance.

Our manufacturing processes involve daily use of technical equipment’s and machineries. They require
periodic maintenance checks and technical support in an event of technical breakdown or malfunctioning. Our
company has not entered into any technical support service agreements with any competent third party. Our
failure to reduce the downtime in case such events occur may adversely affect our productivity, business and
results of operations.

We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences
could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and
serious harm to our reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter such
misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective in all
cases. Our employees and agents may also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for
alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on account of which our business, financial condition, results
of operations and goodwill could be adversely affected.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group will continue jointly to retain majority control over
our Company after the Issue, which will allow them to determine the outcome of matters submitted to
shareholders for approval.

After completion of the Issue, our Promoters and Promoter Group will collectively own 79.41% of the Equity
Shares. As a result, our Promoters together with the members of the Promoter Group will be able to exercise a
significant degree of influence over us and will be able to control the outcome of any proposal that can be
approved by a majority shareholder vote, including, the election of members to our Board, in accordance with
the Companies Act and our Articles of Association. Such a concentration of ownership may also have the
effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of our Company.
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In addition, our Promoters will continue to have the ability to cause us to take actions that are not in, or may
conflict with, our interests or the interests of some or all of our creditors or minority shareholders, and we
cannot assure you that such actions will not have an adverse effect on our future financial performance or the
price of our Equity Shares.

Within the parameters as mentioned in the chapter titled ‘Objects of this Issue’ beginning on page 89 of
this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company’s management Will have flexibility in applying the proceeds of
this Issue. The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the ‘Objects of the Issue’ have not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution.

We intend to use entire fresh Issue Proceeds towards working capital requirements and for general corporate
purposes. We intend to deploy the Net Issue Proceeds in financial year 2017-18 and such deployment is based
on certain assumptions and strategy which our Company believes to implement in future. The funds raised
from the fresh Issue may remain idle on account of change in assumptions, market conditions, strategy of our
Company, etc., For further details on the use of the Issue Proceeds, please refer chapter titled "Objects of the
Issue™ beginning on page 89 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

The deployment of funds for the purposes described above is at the discretion of our Company’s Board of
Directors. The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution. Accordingly, within the parameters as mentioned in the chapter
titled ‘Objects of the Issue’ beginning on page 89 of this Prospectus, the Management will have significant
flexibility in applying the proceeds received by our Company from the Issue. However, the Company shall
comply with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013 before varying the ‘Objects of the Issue’. The Audit
Committee will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of this Issue.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group have provided personal guarantees to certain loan
facilities availed by us, which if revoked may require alternative guarantees, repayment of amounts due or
termination of the facilities.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group have provided personal guarantees in relation to certain
loan facilities availed of by us. In the event that any of these guarantees are revoked, the lenders for such
facilities may require alternate guarantees, repayment of amounts outstanding under such facilities, or may
even terminate such facilities. We may not be successful in procuring alternative guarantees satisfactory to the
lenders, and as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional sources
of capital, which may not be available on acceptable terms or at all and any such failure to raise additional
capital could affect our operations and our financial condition.

Negative publicity could adversely affect our revenue model and profitability.

Our business is dependent on the trust our customers have in the quality of our products. Any negative
publicity regarding our company, brand, or products, including those arising from a drop in quality of
merchandise from our vendors, mishaps resulting from the use of our products, or any other unforeseen events
could affect our reputation and our results from operations. Further our brand may also be affected if there is
any negative publicity associated with our products.

We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.

Our Company has entered into certain transactions with our related parties including our Promoters, the
Promoter Group, our Directors and their relatives. We have loans taken from promoter and members of
promoter group. While we believe that all such transactions have been conducted on the arm‘s length basis,
there can be no assurance that we could not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions not
been entered into with related parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will enter into related party transactions
in the future. There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will not have
an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operation. For details on the transactions entered by
us, please refer to section “Related Party Transactions” in Chapter “Financial Statements” beginning on page
172 of this Red Herring Prospectus

Issue related risk
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After this Issue, the price of the Equity Shares may be highly volatile, or an active trading market for the
Equity Shares may not develop.

The price of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange may fluctuate as a result of the factors, including:

Volatility in the Indian and global capital market;

Company’s results of operations and financial performance;

Performance of Company’s competitors,

Adverse media reports on Company or pertaining to the Industry in which we operate;
Changes in our estimates of performance or recommendations by financial analysts;
Significant developments in India’s economic and fiscal policies; and

g. Significant developments in India’s environmental regulations.

hD o0 T

Current valuations may not be sustainable in the future and may also not be reflective of future valuations for
our industry and our Company. There has been no public market for the Equity Shares and the prices of the
Equity Shares may fluctuate after this Issue. There can be no assurance that an active trading market for the
Equity Shares will develop or be sustained after this Issue or that the price at which the Equity Shares are
initially traded will correspond to the price at which the Equity Shares will trade in the market subsequent to
this Issue.

The Issue price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after
the Issue and the market price of our Equity Shares may decline below the issue price and you may not be
able to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price.

The Issue Price of our Equity Shares has been determined by book building method. This price is be based on
numerous factors (For further information, please refer chapter titled “Basis for Issue Price” beginning on
page 94 of this Prospectus) and may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the Issue.
The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Issue, and may
decline below the Issue Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your Equity Shares at or
above the Issue Price. Among the factors that could affect our share price include without limitation. The
following:

o Half yearly variations in the rate of growth of our financial indicators, such as earnings per share, net
income and revenues;

e Changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts;

e Speculation in the press or investment community;

e General market conditions; and

e Domestic and international economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance.
Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoters or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the trading
price of the Equity Shares.

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoters or by other significant shareholder(s) may
significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be adversely
affected even if there is a perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur.

Industry Risks

Changes in government regulations or their implementation could disrupt our operations and adversely
affect our business and results of operations.

Our business and industry is regulated by different laws, rules and regulations framed by the Central and State
Government. These regulations can be amended/ changed on a short notice at the discretion of the
Government. If we fail to comply with all applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our business
or their implementation change adversely, we may incur increased costs or be subject to penalties, which
could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Other Risks

The Companies Act, 2013 has effected significant changes to the existing Indian company law framework,
which may subject us to higher compliance requirements and increase our compliance costs.
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A majority of the provisions and rules under the Companies Act, 2013 have recently been notified and have
come into effect from the date of their respective notification, resulting in the corresponding provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 ceasing to have effect. The Companies Act, 2013 has brought into effect significant
changes to the Indian company law framework, such as in the provisions related to issue of capital, disclosures
in prospectus, corporate governance norms, audit matters, related party transactions, introduction of a
provision allowing the initiation of class action suits in India against companies by shareholders or depositors,
a restriction on investment by an Indian company through more than two layers of subsidiary investment
companies (subject to certain permitted exceptions), prohibitions on loans to directors and insider trading and
restrictions on directors and key managerial personnel from engaging in forward dealing. To ensure
compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, we may need to allocate additional resources,
which may increase our regulatory compliance costs and divert management attention.

The Companies Act, 2013 introduced certain additional requirements which do not have corresponding
equivalents under the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, we may face challenges in interpreting and
complying with such provisions due to limited jurisprudence on them. In the event, our interpretation of
such provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 differs from, or contradicts with, any judicial pronouncements
or clarifications issued by the Government in the future, we may face regulatory actions or we may be
required to undertake remedial steps. We may face difficulties in complying with any such overlapping
requirements. Further, we cannot currently determine the impact of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
which are yet to come in force. Any increase in our compliance requirements or in our compliance costs
may have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws and regulations, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares in an Indian
company are generally taxable in India. Any gain realised on the sale of shares on a stock exchange held for
more than 12 months will not be subject to capital gains tax in India if the securities transaction tax (“STT”)
has been paid on the transaction. The STT will be levied on and collected by an Indian stock exchange on
which equity shares are sold. Further, any gain realised on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of
12 months or less will be subject to short term capital gains tax in India, if securities transaction tax has been
paid on the transaction. Any gain realised on the sale of shares held for more than 36 months to an Indian
resident, which are sold other than on a recognised stock exchange and as a result of which no STT has been
paid, will be subject to long term capital gains tax in India. Further, any gain realised on the sale of equity
shares held for a period of 36 months or less which are sold other than on a recognised stock exchange and on
which no STT has been paid, may be subject to short term capital gains tax at a relatively higher rate as
compared to the transaction where STT has been paid in India.

Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as U.S. GAAP
and IFRS, which may be material to the financial statements prepared and presented in accordance with
SEBI ICDR Regulations contained in this Prospectus.

As stated in the reports of the Auditor included in this Prospectus under chapter “Financial Statements as
restated” beginning on page 197, the financial statements included in this Prospectus are based on financial
information that is based on the audited financial statements that are prepared and presented in conformity
with Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and no attempt has been
made to reconcile any of the information given in this Prospectus to any other principles or to base it on any
other standards. Indian GAAP differs from accounting principles and auditing standards with which
prospective investors may be familiar in other countries, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Significant
differences exist between Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP and IFRS, which may be material to the financial
information prepared and presented in accordance with Indian GAAP contained in this Prospectus.
Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Prospectus will provide
meaningful information is dependent on familiarity with Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and the SEBI
ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian GAAP on the financial disclosures
presented in this Prospectus should accordingly be limited.

Political instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could seriously harm
business and economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular.
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The Government of India has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects of
the economy. Our business and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares may be affected by interest
rates, changes in Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other
developments in or affecting India. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and
policies affecting the information technology sector, foreign investment and other matters affecting
investment in our securities could change as well. Any significant change in such liberalization and
deregulation policies could adversely affect business and economic conditions in India, generally, and our
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, in particular.

We cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of facts and other statistics with respect to India, the
Indian economy and Pharmaceutical industry contained in the Prospectus.

While facts and other statistics in this Prospectus relating to India, the Indian economy and the
Pharmaceutical industry has been based on various government publications and reports from government
agencies that we believe are reliable, we cannot guarantee the quality or reliability of such materials. While
we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of such information, industry facts and other statistics have
not been prepared or independently verified by us or any of our respective affiliates or advisors and, therefore
we make no representation as to their accuracy or completeness. These facts and other statistics include the
facts and statistics included in the chapter titled ‘Our Industry’ beginning on page 100 of this Prospectus. Due
to possibly flawed or ineffective data collection methods or discrepancies between published information and
market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to
statistics produced elsewhere and should not be unduly relied upon. Further, there is no assurance that they are
stated or compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy, as the case may be, elsewhere.

Conditions in the Indian securities market may affect the price or liquidity of our Equity Shares.

The Indian securities markets are smaller than securities markets in more developed economies and the
regulation and monitoring of Indian securities markets and the activities of investors, brokers and other
participants differ, in some cases significantly, from those in the more developed economies. Indian stock
exchanges have in the past experienced substantial fluctuations in the prices of listed securities. Further, the
Indian stock exchanges have experienced volatility in the recent times. The Indian stock exchanges have also
experienced problems that have affected the market price and liquidity of the securities of Indian companies,
such as temporary exchange closures, broker defaults, settlement delays and strikes by brokers. In addition,
the governing bodies of the Indian stock exchanges have from time to time restricted securities from trading
and limited price movements. A closure of, or trading stoppage on the Emerge Platform of National Stock
Exchange of India Limited could adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs
and negatively affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect
performance. These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of
governments, inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability, fluctuations in
commodities markets, consumer debt levels, unemployment trends and other matters that influence consumer
confidence, spending and tourism. Increasing volatility in financial markets may cause these factors to change
with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude, which may negatively affect our stock prices.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to
attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents
and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines
and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred,
is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions
referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to
convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign
currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. There
can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government agency can be obtained
on any particular terms or at all.
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The extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure could adversely affect our Company’s results of
operations and financial condition.

India’s physical infrastructure is in developing phase compared to that of many developed nations. Any
congestion or disruption in its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any
other public facility could disrupt our Company’s normal business activity. Any deterioration of India’s
physical infrastructure would harm the national economy; disrupt the transportation of goods and supplies,
and costs to doing business in India. These problems could interrupt our Company’s business operations,
which could have an adverse effect on its results of operations and financial condition.

Any downgrading of India’s sovereign rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise
financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating
agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing may be available. This could have an adverse effect on
our business and future financial performance, our ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures and the
trading price of our Equity Shares.

Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause our Company’s
business to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent years, the extent
and severity of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of
abnormal rainfall or other natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which
could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations as well as the price
of the Equity Shares.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries could
adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our Equity Shares.

Any major hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that are
beyond our control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business. Incidents such
as the terrorist attacks, other incidents such as those in US, Indonesia, Madrid and London, and other acts of
violence may adversely affect the Indian stock markets where our Equity Shares will trade as well the global
equity markets generally. Such acts could negatively impact business sentiment as well as trade between
countries, which could adversely affect our Company’s business and profitability. Additionally, such events
could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including the Equity
Shares

PROMINENT NOTES

. Public Issue of upto 64,20,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each of our Company for cash at a

price of Rs. [@]/- per Equity Share (including a share premium of Rs. [®]/- per Equity Share) (“Issue Price”)
aggregating upto Rs. [e] Lakhs, comprising a fresh issue of [®] equity shares aggregating Rs. [@] by the
Company of which uptp 3,24,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each will be reserved for
subscription by Market Maker to the Issue (“Market Maker Reservation Portion™). The Issue less the Market
Maker Reservation Portion i.e. Net Issue of upto 60,96,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each is
hereinafter referred to as the “Net Issue”. The Issue and the Net Issue will constitute [#]% and [e]%,
respectively of the post Issue paid up equity share capital of the Company.

Investors may contact the Book Running Lead Manager (BRLM) or the Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer for any complaint/clarification/information pertaining to the Issue. For contact details of the Book
Running Lead Manager and the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, please refer to chapter titled
“General Information” beginning on page 64 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

The pre-issue net worth of our Company was Rs. 1,982.18 lakhs and Rs. 1943.43 lakhs as at September 30,
2017 and March 31, 2017. The book value of each Equity Share was Rs. 13.21/- and Rs. 12.91/- as at
September 30, 2017 and March 31, 2017 respectively as per the restated financial statements of our Company.
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For more information, please refer to section titled “Financial Statements as Restated” beginning on page 172
of this Red Herring Prospectus.

The average cost of acquisition per Equity Share by our Promoters is set forth in the table below:

Average cost of Acquisition

Name of the Promoter No. of Shares held (in Rs)
Lavjibhai Savaliya 35,84,200 9.24
Lalitkumar Vasoya 74,24,300 9.81

For further details relating to the allotment of Equity Shares to our Promoters, please refer to the chapter titled
“Capital Structure” beginning on page number 74 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Company has entered into related party transactions during the previous years. For details on related party
transactions and loans and advances made to any company in which Directors are interested, please refer
Annexure “XXIV” “Related Party Transactions” under chapter titled “Financial Statements as restated”
beginning on page 172 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Investors may note that in case of over-subscription in the Issue, allotment to Retail applicants and other
applicants shall be on a proportionate basis. For more information, please refer to the chapter titled “Issue
Structure” beginning on page 74 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

. Except as disclosed in the chapter titled “Capital Structure”, “Our Promoter and Promoter Group”, “Our

Management” and “Related Party Transactions” beginning on pages 74, 165, 149 and 170 respectively, of
this Red Herring Prospectus, none of our Promoters, Directors, Group Companies or Key Management
Personnel has any interest in our Company.

Except as disclosed in the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 74 of this Red Herring
Prospectus, we have not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash.

Trading in Equity Shares of our Company for all investors shall be in dematerialized form only.

10.Investors are advised to refer to the chapter titled “Basis for Issue Price” beginning on page 95 of the Red

Herring Prospectus.

11.There are no financing arrangements whereby the Promoter Group, the Directors of our Company and their

relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company during the period of six
months immediately preceding the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus with the Stock exchange.

12.0ur company was incorporated as Shree Ram Protiens Private Limited under the provision of the companies

Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation dated August 29, 2008. Consequently, it was converted into a
public limited company pursuant to shareholders resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting of our
Company held on September 28, 2017 and the name of our Company was changed to Shree Ram Protiens
Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon Conversion of Private Company to Public
Limited dated October 06, 2017 was issued by Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Ahmedabad. Subsequently
the Name our Company was Changed From Shree Ram Protiens Limited to Shree Ram Proteins Limited vide
fresh certificate of Incorporation dated November 29, 2017 issued by Registrar of Companies Ahmedabad.
The Corporate Identification Number of our Company is U01405GJ2008PLC054913.

13.Except as stated in the chapter titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 18, chapter titled “Our Group

Companies” beginning on page 169 and chapter titled “Related Party Transactions” beginning on page 170 of
this Red Herring Prospectus, our Group Companies have no business interest or other interest in our
Company.
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SECTION 111 - INTRODUCTION
SUMMARY OF INDUSTRY

The information in this section includes extracts from publicly available information, data and statistics and
has been derived from various government publications and industry sources. Neither we nor any other
person connected with the Issue have verified this information. The data may have been re-classified by us for
the purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications generally state that the information contained
therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy,
completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured and,
accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information. You should read the entire Red
Herring Prospectus, including the information contained in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Financial
Statements” and related notes beginning on page 18 and 172 Red Herring Prospectus

BACKGROUND OF INDIAN FOOD PROCESSING INDUSTRY

The Indian food industry is poised for huge growth, increasing its contribution to world food trade every
year. In India, the food sector has emerged as a high-growth and high-profit sector due to its immense
potential for value addition, particularly within the food processing industry. The food industry, which is
currently valued at US$ 39.71 billion!, is expected to grow at a Compounded Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)
of 11 per cent to US$ 65.4 billion by 2018. Food and grocery account for around 31 per cent of India’s
consumption basket.

Accounting for about 32 per cent of the country’s total food market, The Government of India has been
instrumental in the growth and development of the food processing industry. The government through the
Ministry of Food Processing Industries (MoFPI) is making all efforts to encourage investments in the
business. It has approved proposals for joint ventures (JV), foreign collaborations, industrial licenses, and
100 per cent export oriented units.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

For India, three external developments are of significant consequence. In the short run, the change in the
outlook for global interest rates as a result of the US elections and the implied change in expectations of US
fiscal and monetary policy will impact on India’s capital flows and exchange rates. Markets are factoring in a
regime change in advanced countries, especially US macroeconomic policy, with high expectations of fiscal
stimulus and unwavering exit from unconventional monetary policies. The end of the 20-year bond rally and
end to the corset of deflation and deflationary expectations are within sight. Second, the medium-term
political outlook for globalisation and in particular for the world’s “political carrying capacity for
globalisation” may have changed in the wake of recent developments. In the short run a strong dollar and
declining competitiveness might exacerbate the lure of protectionist policies. These follow on on-going
trends— documented widely—about stagnant or declining trade at the global level. This changed outlook will
affect India’s export and growth prospects

Third, developments in the US, especially the rise of the dollar, will have implications for China’s currency
and currency policy. If China is able to successfully re-balance its economy, the spill over effects on India and
the rest of the world will be positive. On, the other hand, further declines in the yuan, even if dollar-induced,
could interact with underlying vulnerabilities to create disruptions in China that could have negative spill
overs for India. For China, there are at least two difficult balancing acts with respect to the currency.
Domestically, a declining currency (and credit expansion) props up the economy in the short run but delay
rebalancing while also adding to the medium term challenges. Internationally, allowing the currency to
weaken in response to capital flight risks creating trade frictions but imposing capital controls discourages
FDI and undermines China’s ambitions to establish the Yuan as a reserve currency. China with its underlying
vulnerabilities remains the country to watch for its potential to unsettle the global economy.

(Source: Economic Survey 2016-17 www.indiabudget.nic.in)

REVIEW OF MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN INDIAN ECONOMY

The Indian economy has continued to consolidate the gains achieved in restoring macroeconomic stability.
Real GDP growth in the first half of the year was 7.2 percent, on the weaker side of the 7.0-7.75 per cent
projection in the Economic Survey 2015-16 and somewhat lower than the 7.6 percent rate recorded in the
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second half of 2015-16 (Figure 1a). The main problem was fixed investment, which declined sharply as
stressed balance sheets in the corporate sector continued to take a toll on firms’ spending plans. On the
positive side, the economy was buoyed by government consumption, as the 7th Pay Commission salary
recommendations were implemented, and by the long-awaited start of an export recovery as demand in
advanced countries began to accelerate. Nominal GDP growth recovered to respectable levels, reversing the
sharp and worrisome dip that had occurred in the first half of 2015-16 (Figure 1b).

Figure 1a. GVA and GDP Growth Figure 1b. GVA and GDP Growth
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The major highlights of the sectoral growth outcome of the first half of 2016-17 were: (i) moderation in
industrial and nongovernment service sectors; (ii) the modest pick-up in agricultural growth on the back of
improved monsoon; and (iii) strong growth in public administration and defence services— dampeners on and
catalysts to growth almost balancing each other and producing a real Gross Value Addition (GVA) growth
(7.2 percent), quite similar to the one (7.1 per cent) in H2 2015-16 (Figure 1b).

Inflation this year has been characterized by two distinctive features. The Consumer Price Index (CPI)-New
Series inflation, which averaged 4.9 per cent during April-December 2016, has displayed a downward trend
since July when it became apparent that kharif agricultural production in general, and pulses in particular
would be bountiful. The decline in pulses prices has contributed substantially to the decline in CPI inflation
which reached 3.4 percent at end-December. The second distinctive feature has been the reversal of WPI
inflation, from a trough of (-)5.1 percent in August 2015 to 3.4 percent at end-December 2016, on the back of
rising international oil prices. The wedge between CPI and WPI inflation, which had serious implications for
the measurement of GDP discussed in MYEA (Box 3, Chapter 1, MYEA 2015-16), has narrowed
considerably. Core inflation has, however, been more stable, hovering around 4.5 percent to 5 percent for the
year so far. The outlook for the year as a whole is for CPI inflation to be below the RBI’s target of 5 percent, a
trend likely to be assisted by demonetisation.

External Sector

Similarly, the external position appears robust having successfully weathered the sizeable redemption of
Foreign Currency Non-Resident (FCNR) deposits in late 2016, and the volatility associated with the US
election and demonetisation. The current account deficit has declined to reach about 0.3 percent of GDP in the
first half of FY2017.Foreign exchange reserves are at comfortable levels, having have risen from around
US$350billion at end-January 2016 to US$ 360 billion at end-December 2016 and are well above standard
norms for reserve adequacy. In part, surging net FDI inflows, which grew from 1.7percent of GDP in FY2016
to 3.2 percent of GDP in the second quarter of FY2017, helped the balance-of-payments

The trade deficit declined by 23.5 per cent in April-December 2016 over corresponding period of previous
year. During the first half of the fiscal year, the main factor was the contraction in imports, which was far
steeper than the fall in exports. But during October- December, both exports and imports started a long-
awaited recovery, growing at an average rate of more than 5 per cent. The improvement in exports appears to
be linked to improvements in the world economy, led by better growth in the US and Germany. On the import
side, the advantage on account of benign international oil prices has receded and is likely to exercise upward
pressure on the import bill in the short to medium term. Meanwhile, the net services surplus declined in the
first half, as software service exports slowed and financial service exports declined. Net private remittances
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declined by $4.5 bn in the first half of 2016-17 compared to the same period of 2015-16, weighed down by the
lagged effects of the oil price decline, which affected inflows from the Gulf region.

Fiscal Position

Trends in the fiscal sector in the first half have been unexceptional and the central government is committed to
achieving its fiscal deficit target of 3.5 percent of GDP this year. Excise duties and services taxes have
benefitted from the additional revenue measures introduced last year. The most notable feature has been the
over-performance (even relative to budget estimates) of excise duties in turn based on buoyant petroleum
consumption: real consumption of petroleum products (petrol) increased by 11.2 percent during April-
December 2016 compared to same period in the previous year. Indirect taxes, especially petroleum excises,
have held up even after demonetisation in part due to the exemption of petroleum products from its scope.
More broadly, tax collections have held up to a greater extent than expected possibly because of payment of
dues in demonetised notes was permitted. Non-tax revenues have been challenged owing to shortfall in
spectrum and disinvestment receipts but also to forecast optimism; the stress in public sector enterprises has
also reduced dividend payments.

State government finances are under stress. The consolidated deficit of the states has increased steadily in
recent years, rising from 2.5 percent of GDP in 2014-15 to 3.6 percent of GDP in 2015-16, in part because of
the UDAY scheme. The budgeted numbers suggest there will be an improvement this year. However, markets
are anticipating some slippage, on account of the expected growth slowdown, reduced revenues from stamp
duties, and implementation of their own Pay Commissions. For these reasons, the spread on state bonds over
government securities jumped to 75 basis points in the January 2017 auction from 45 basis points in October
2016. For the general government as a whole, there is an improvement in the fiscal deficit with and without
UDAY scheme.

(Source: Economic Survey 2016-17 www.indiabudget.nic.in)

Fiscal outlook

The fiscal outlook for the central government for next year will be marked by three factors. First, the increase
in the tax to GDP ratio of about 0.5 percentage points in each of the last two years, owing to the oil windfall
will disappear. In fact, excise-related taxes will decline by about 0.1 percentage point of GDP, a swing of
about 0.6 percentage points relative to FY2017.

Second, there will be a fiscal windfall both from the high denomination notes that are not returned to the RBI
and from higher tax collections as a result of increased disclosure under the Pradhan Mantra Garib Kalyan
Yojana (PMGKY). Both of these are likely to be one-off in nature, and in both cases the magnitudes are
uncertain.

A third factor will be the implementation of the GST. It appears that the GST will probably be implemented
later in the fiscal year. The transition to the GST is so complicated from an administrative and technology
perspective that revenue collection will take some time to reach full potential. Combined with the
government’s commitment to compensating the states for any shortfall in their own GST collections (relative
to a baseline of 14 percent increase), the outlook must be cautious with respect to revenue collections. The
fiscal gains from implementing the GST and demonetisation, while almost certain to occur, will probably take
time to be fully realized. In addition, muted non-tax revenues and allowances granted under the 7th Pay
Commission could add to pressures on the deficit.

GLOBAL MANUFACTURING SECTOR

World Manufacturing Growth in quarter 11, 25017

World manufacturing in the second quarter of 2017 has continued to show signs of expansion, following an
upward trend observed throughout 2016 and improved growth rates in the first quarter of 2017. Both
industrialized and developing and emerging industrial economies gained further strength in manufacturing
production and confirmed their healthy dynamic growth.

Although the pace of growth indicates similar trends in both country groups (Figure 2), developing economies
continuously performed better than industrialized ones. The current growth prospects are improving further on
account of rising consumer spending and promising investment plans, which are favourably directed towards

Page 37 of 327


http://www.indiabudget.nic.in/

developing economies. Changing business conditions are driving industrial production growth and confidence
for the overall outlook has been increasing. Moreover, the risks for global growth witnessed last year, such as
political instability in Europe, unpredictability of the Brexit aftermath, the rising trade protectionism following
the US election and an abrupt slowdown in China have certainly diminished, although they have not
disappeared completely.

Figure 2: Growth of world manufacturing output
in % compared to the same quarter of the previous year
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(Source: World Manufacturing Production, Statistics for Quarter I, 2017, United Nations Industrial
Development Organization, www.unido.org )

Optimistic results reported in the first quarter have carried over into the second quarter of this year. Global
manufacturing output rose by 4.2 per cent in the second quarter of 2017 compared to the same period of the
previous year, building on the robust 3.7 per cent increase observed at the beginning of 2017. The major
industrialized economies with a significant share in global manufacturing output, namely the United States,
Japan, Germany, Italy and France, thrived in the second quarter of 2017. The growth prospects of China, the
world's largest manufacturer, remained unchanged.

As depicted in Figure 2, steady progress over several consecutive quarters characterizes all country groups
and the prospects for sustained global industrial growth in the coming periods are good.

Manufacturing Growth in Industrialized economies

The manufacturing output growth of industrialized economies has progressively been improving over the last
quarters. The upward growth trend-at a relatively moderate pace-is attributable to the robust dynamics in all
industrialized regions, namely East Asia, Europe and North America.

The manufacturing sector gained increasing strength due to domestic and external demand in European
economies and resulted in the solid performance recorded in the second quarter of 2017. Europe's
manufacturing output jumped to 2.7 per cent in the second quarter of 2017 from 1.6 per cent growth in the
previous quarter, while the growth rate in the Eurozone witness the same development during the second
quarter of 2017 (Figure 3).
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Figure 3: Growth rates of manufacturing output in Europe,
in % to the same period of the previous year
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The disaggregated data points to continued improvement in the already healthy economic momentum of
leading Eurozone economies with growth figures of 2.9 per cent in Germany and Italy, and 2.4 per cent in
France and Spain compared to year-to-year developments. The manufacturing production in other economies
of the single currency block seemingly remained healthy in the second quarter. Strong growth of over 8.0 per
cent was observed in Slovenia. and Estonia, while a fairly robust growth rate was recorded in the Netherlands
(3.0 per cent), Austria (3.5 per cent), Belgium (4.2 per cent) and Finland (3.2 per cent). The manufacturing
sector in the eurozone ended the second quarter on a strong note. The only exception was Ireland, where
manufacturing output fell by 1.1 percent compared to the same period of the previous year.

Taking a closer look at individual countries beyond the eurozone, manufacturing output remained stagnant in
the United Kingdom at only 0.2 per cent growth in the second quarter of 2017. Despite remaining in positive
terrain, output dipped significantly considering that the previous quarter's result was the highest one in over
two years. On the other hand, the pace of growth in Czechia and Hungary strengthened, where an increase of
7.4 per cent and 4.7 percent was recorded, respectively. Other exceptionally positive results were visible in
Switzerland with a 2.4 per cent growth rate as well as in Sweden with a gain of 5.2 per cent compared to the
same period of the previous year. Among the other Nordic countries, Denmark expanded its manufacturing
production by 3.7 per cent, while Norway significantly moderated its contraction rate to roughly 0.4 per cent.
North America's overall manufacturing production grew by 1.6 per cent compared to the same period of 2016.
The strengthening of the dollar and the consequent weak demand for U.S. goods caused the American
manufacturing sector to go into recession in late 2015. However, the recent weakening of the U.S. dollar
combined with a stronger global environment resulted in the opposite effect, and American total
manufacturing output rose by 1.5 per cent compared to the same period of the previous year, representing the
highest increase since the last recession. Improved performance was also witnessed in Canadian
manufacturing, where manufacturing production expanded by 3.5 per cent in the second quarter of 2017.

Another positive result was observed in industrialized East Asian economies in the second quarter of 2017 - a
4.4 per cent improvement compared to the same period of the previous year. The main forces that have been
driving growth in Japan's manufacturing sector in recent quarters remained firmly in place in the second
quarter of 2017. Japan, the major force behind the entire region's upward trend, reconfirmed the end of a long
period of contractions with a growth rate of nearly 5.8 per cent. The Republic of Korea's manufacturing
production, on the other hand, remained almost unchanged compared to the same period of the previous year.
Malaysia's total manufacturing output recorded a 5.9 per cent rise in the second quarter of 2017; a very strong
growth rate of 8.5 per cent was observed in Singapore. The manufacturing production of Taiwan, Province of
China lost some steam in the second quarter of 2017 according to the latest figures, although it still expanded
at a moderate 2.6 per cent pace on a year-to-year basis.
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MANUFACTURING SECTOR IN INDIA

Introduction

Manufacturing has emerged as one of the high growth sectors in India. Prime Minister of India, Mr Narendra
Modi, had launched the ‘Make in India’ program to place India on the world map as a manufacturing hub and
give global recognition to the Indian economy. India is expected to become the fifth largest manufacturing
country in the world by the end of year 2020*.

The Gross Value Added (GVA) at basic constant (2011-12) prices from the manufacturing sector in India
grew 7.9 per cent year-on-year in 2016-17, as per the 2nd provisional estimate of annual national income
published by the Government of India. Under the Make in India initiative, the Government of India aims to
increase the share of the manufacturing sector to the gross domestic product (GDP) to 25 per cent by 2022,
from 16 per cent, and to create 100 million new jobs by 2022. Business conditions in the Indian
manufacturing sector continue to remain positive.

Government Initiatives

In a bid to push the 'Make in India’ initiative to the global level, Mr Narendra Modi, Prime Minister of India,
pitched India as a manufacturing destination at the World International Fair in Germany's Hannover in 2015.
Mr Modi showcased India as a business friendly destination to attract foreign businesses to invest and
manufacture in the country.

The Government of India has taken several initiatives to promote a healthy environment for the growth of
manufacturing sector in the country. Some of the notable initiatives and developments are:

e The Government of India has introduced several policy measures in the Union Budget 2017-18 to
provide impetus to the manufacturing sector. Some of which include reduction of income tax rate to
25 per cent for MSME companies having turnover up to Rs 50 crore (US$ 7.5 million), MAT credit
carry forward extended to 15 years from 10 years and abolishment of Foreign Investment Promotion
Board (FIPB) by 2017-18.

e The Government of India has launched a phased manufacturing programme (PMP) aimed at adding
more smartphone components under the Make in India initiative thereby giving a push to the domestic
manufacturing of mobile handsets.

e The Government of India is in talks with stakeholders to further ease foreign direct investment (FDI)
in defence under the automatic route to 51 per cent from the current 49 per cent, in order to give a
boost to the Make in India initiative and to generate employment.

e The Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India, has approved the
setting up of four Centres of Excellence (CoE) in areas of textile machinery, machine tools, welding
technology and smart pumps, which will help raise the technology depth of the Indian Capital Goods
Industry.

e The Ministry of Defence, Government of India, approved the “Strategic Partnership” model which
will enable private companies to tie up with foreign players for manufacturing submarines, fighter
jets, helicopters and armoured vehicles.

e The Union Cabinet has approved the Modified Special Incentive Package Scheme (M-SIPS) in which,
proposals will be accepted till December 2018 or up to an incentive commitment limit of Rs 10,000
crore (US$ 1.5 billion).

Road Ahead

India is an attractive hub for foreign investments in the manufacturing sector. Several mobile phone, luxury
and automobile brands, among others, have set up or are looking to establish their manufacturing bases in the
country.
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The manufacturing sector of India has the potential to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2025 and India is expected to
rank amongst the top three growth economies and manufacturing destination of the world by the year 2020.
The implementation of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) will make India a common market with a GDP of
USS$ 2 trillion along with a population of 1.2 billion people, which will be a big draw for investors.

With impetus on developing industrial corridors and smart cities, the government aims to ensure holistic
development of the nation. The corridors would further assist in integrating, monitoring and developing a
conducive environment for the industrial development and will

promote advance practices in manufacturing.

Exchange Rate Used: INR 1 = US$ 0.015 as on October 30, 2017

(Source: Manufacturing Sector in India, India Brand Equity Foundation www.ibef.org)

INDIAN FOOD PROCESSING INDUSTRY

Intr tion

The Indian food industry is poised for huge growth, increasing its contribution to world food trade every
year. In India, the food sector has emerged as a high-growth and high-profit sector due to its immense
potential for value addition, particularly within the food processing industry. The food industry, which is
currently valued at US$ 39.71 billion!, is expected to grow at a Compounded Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)
of 11 per cent to US$ 65.4 billion by 2018. Food and grocery account for around 31 per cent of India’s
consumption basket.

Accounting for about 32 per cent of the country’s total food market, The Government of India has been
instrumental in the growth and development of the food processing industry. The government through the
Ministry of Food Processing Industries (MoFPI) is making all efforts to encourage investments in the
business. It has approved proposals for joint ventures (JV), foreign collaborations, industrial licenses, and
100 per cent export oriented units.

Market Size

The Indian food and grocery market is the world’s sixth largest, with retail contributing 70 per cent of the
sales. The Indian food retail market is expected to reach Rs 61 lakh crore (US$ 915 billion) by 2020.

The Indian food processing industry accounts for 32 per cent of the country’s total food market, one of the
largest industries in India and is ranked fifth in terms of production, consumption, export and expected
growth. It contributes around 14 per cent of manufacturing Gross Domestic Product (GDP), 13 per cent of
India’s exports and six per cent of total industrial investment. Indian food service industry is expected to reach
US$ 78 billion by 2018.The Indian gourmet food market is currently valued at US$ 1.3 billion and is growing
at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 20 per cent. India's organic food market is expected to
increase by three times by 2020##.

The online food ordering business in India is in its nascent stage, but witnessing exponential growth. The
organised food business in India is worth US$ 48 billion, of which food delivery is valued at US$ 15 billion.
With online food delivery players like FoodPanda, Zomato, TinyOwl and Swiggy building scale through
partnerships, the organised food business has a huge potential and a promising future. The online food
delivery industry grew at 150 per cent year-on-year with an estimated Gross Merchandise Value (GMV) of
US$ 300 million in 2016.

Government Initiatives

Some of the major initiatives taken by the Government of India to improve the food processing sector in India
are as follows:
e In Union Budget 2017-18, the Government of India has set up a dairy processing infra fund worth Rs
8,000 crore (US$ 1.2 billion).
e Union Budget 2016-17 proposed 100 per cent FDI through FIPB (Foreign Investment Promotion
Board) route in marketing of food products produced and manufactured in India.
e The Government of India has relaxed foreign direct investment (FDI) norms for the sector, allowing
up to 100 per cent FDI in food product e-commerce through automatic route.
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e The Food Safety and Standards Authority of India (FSSAI) plans to invest around Rs 482 crore (US$
72.3 million) to strengthen the food testing infrastructure in India, by upgrading 59 existing food
testing laboratories and setting up 62 new mobile testing labs across the country.

e The Indian Council for Fertilizer and Nutrient Research (ICFNR) will adopt international best
practices for research in fertiliser sector, which will enable farmers to get good quality fertilisers at
affordable rates and thereby achieve food security for the common man.

e The Government of India allocated Rs 1,500 crore (US$ 225.7 million) and announced various
measures under the Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS), including setting up of agencies
for aquaculture and fisheries in coastal states and export incentives for marine products.

o Government of India plans to allow two Indian dairy companies, Parag Milk Foods and Schreiber
Dynamix Dairies, to export milk products to Russia for six months, after these companies got
approval for their products by Russian inspection authorities.

e Ms Harsimrat Kaur Badal, Union Minister for Food Processing Industries, Government of India
inaugurated the first of its kind Rs 136 crore (US$ 20 million) mega international food park at
Dabwala Kalan, Punjab. She has also expressed confidence that the decision to allow 100 per cent
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in multi-brand retail with 100 per cent local sourcing condition, will
act as a catalyst for the food processing sector, thereby controlling inflation, uplifting the condition of
farmers, and creating more jobs in the country.

e FSSAI has issued new rules for importing products, to address concerns over the entry of sub-
standard items and simplify the process by setting shelf-life norms and relaxing labelling guidelines.

e The Ministry of Food Processing Industries announced a scheme for Human Resource Development

(HRD) in the food processing sector. The HRD scheme is being implemented through State

Governments under the National Mission on Food Processing. The scheme has the following four

components:

Creation of infrastructure facilities for degree/diploma courses in food processing sector

Entrepreneurship Development Programme (EDP)

Food Processing Training Centres (FPTC)

Training at recognised institutions at State/National level

FSSAI under the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare has issued the Food Safety and Standards

(Food Product Standards and Food Additives) Regulations, 2011 and the Food Safety and Standards

(Contaminants, Toxins and Residues) Regulations, 2011 which prescribe the quality and safety

standards, respectively for food products.

e Spices Board, set up by the Ministry of Commerce to develop and promote Indian spices worldwide,
aims spice exports of US$ 3 billion by 2017.

e The Government of India has approved the setting up of five numbers of Mega Food Parks in the
states of Bihar,Maharashtra, Himachal Pradesh and Chhattisgarh. The Government plans to set up 42
such mega food parks across the country in next three to four years.

Road Ahead

* VYVVY

Going forward, the adoption of food safety and quality assurance mechanisms such as Total Quality
Management (TQM) including 1SO 9000, 1ISO 22000, Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP),
Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) and Good Hygienic Practices (GHP) by the food processing industry
offers several benefits. It would enable adherence to stringent quality and hygiene norms and thereby protect
consumer health, prepare the industry to face global competition,enhance product acceptance by overseas
buyers and keep the industry technologically abreast of international best practices

(Source: Indian Food Industry, Food Processing Industry in India, Statistics- India Brand Equity Foundation
www.ibef.org )

INDIAN EDIBLE OIL INDUSTRY

Edible oil production

The edible oil production in India has remained more or less stagnant over the years. During the oil year 2011-
12, edible oil production was at 7.3 million tonnes. In the next year, the output remained almost same.
However the production increased and touched 8.2 million tonnes in 2013-14. This was backed by a growth in
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the country’s oilseeds output. It may be noted that the production numbers for edible oil and oilseeds pertains
to the year November to October. After recording a growth in edible oil production during 2013-14, the output
declined for two years in a row during the period 2014-16 on a y-o0-y basis. In 2014-15 and 2015-16, oil
production fell by a sharp 14.8% to 7.00 million tonnes and further by 6.5% to 6.54 million tonnes,
respectively. A fall in oilseed production due to inadequate rains resulted in lower crushing of oilseeds and, in
turn, lowered oil production during these years During the oil year 2015-16, 6.54 million tonnes of edible oil
was produced in India. Of this, majority of the oil output belonged to the four products. Mustard oil,
groundnut oil, cottonseed oil and soyabean oil accounted for 30%, 24.5%, 20.2% and 11.8%, respectively, of
the total edible oils output in the country during the year. The other varieties, coconut oil, seasum oil,
sunflower oil, nigerseed oil and safflower oil accounted for 7%, 4.6%, 1.5%, 0.3% and 0.2%, respectively.

Increase in share of refined oil imports

In 2015-16 as mentioned above, there was an increase in share of refined palm oil imports and a decline in
share of crude palm oil (including crude palm kernel oil) imports compared to that in 2014-15 where their
respective shares stood at 11.5% and 54.6% during 2014-15. Similarly, the share of imported refined palm oil
in total edible oil imports increased to 19.6% during November 2016-April 2017 from 17.7% in the
corresponding period a year ago. At the same time, the share of crude palm oil (including crude palm kernel
oil) imports also increased to 41.9% during November 2016-April 2017 compared to 40.2% a year earlier.

An increase in share of refined oil imports hurts the capacity utilization of domestic edible oil refiners in
India. The rise in the share of refined oil is primarily on account of inverted duty structure in the exporting
countries (Malaysia and Indonesia). The export duty imposed on crude palm oil by these countries is higher
compared to that imposed on refined palm oil. This, in turn, makes the import of refined palm oil cheaper
compared to the import of crude palm oil which requires further processing. Besides, the industry has been
asking the government to increase the import duty differential between crude palm oil and refined palm oil
from the current duty difference of 7.5%. The demand of increase in duty difference if accepted is expected to
reduce the refined oil imports and will encourage the edible oil refiners to increase their capacity utilization in
the country.However, the duty differential remained unchanged at 7.5% when the import duty on crude palm
oil was reduced to 7.5% from 12.5% and the import duty on refined palm oil was cut to 15% from 20% in
September 2016. SEA, on the other hand, has been demanding to increase the difference duty to 15%.

Prices

Of the total global vegetable oils production, palm oil and soybean oil together account for more than 50% of
the vegetable oil production. Thus the movements in prices of these varieties are important to look for. Also,
both these varieties are imported by India to meet their respective domestic requirements. As a result, their
prices in the domestic market are mainly influenced by the movement in international prices.

In November 2014, the international palm oil price in North-West Europe and crude palm oil price in
Malaysia stood at 731 USD/tonne and 2,213.7 RM/tonne, respectively. On a m-o0-m basis, the prices in both
the markets declined in double-digits by 10%-14% in August 2015 and crude palm oil price in Malaysia
reached a low of 1,952 RM/tonne during the month. The palm oil price in North-West Europe was at a low of
538 USD/tonne in September 2015. The fall in prices was on account of a rise in global palm oil production.

During the oil year 2015-16, the prices in both the markets averaged higher compared to the prices in 2014-
15. The palm oil price in North-West Europe and Malaysia were higher by 3% to 665.8 USD/tonne and by
15% to 2,492 RM/tonne, respectively, during the year on a y-o-y basis. In August 2016, prices in both the
markets grew in double-digits by 12%-13.5% on a m-0-m basis and touched a year high in September 2016.
The palm oil price in North-West Europe stood at 756 USD/tonne and in Malaysia it stood at 2,845.9
RM/tonne during the month. This was because of a fall in global palm oil production due to El Nino event.

The prices that touched a high of 809 USD/tonne and 3,270.5 RM/tonne in January 2017 remained depressed
and declined in each of the months during February-April 2017 on a m-o-m basis. The prices are expected to
remain under pressure in the coming months as well on account of higher supplies from Indonesia and
Malaysia. Oil output from these countries account for over 80% of the global palm oil production.
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The domestic palm oil prices reflected the trend in international prices. During the oil year 2014-15, the
domestic palm oil prices in Kandla declined by 19% on a y-o0-y basis and averaged at Rs.431.3 per 10 kg. A
32.4% rise in edible oil imports during the year also created a pressure on prices. In 2015-16, the prices
improved and they averaged 16% higher on a y-0-y basis to Rs.499 per 10 kg. This was also supported by
lower domestic edible oil production during the year. In November 2014, the international soyabean prices in
Netherlands and domestic prices in Mumbai stood at 830 USD/tonne

and Rs.5951.1/quintal, respectively. These prices touched a low of 727 USD/tonne in September 2015 and
Rs.5682.5/quintal in August 2015. The decline in prices was due to higher global soybean oil production

The international and domestic soybean oil prices that remained subdued during 2012-15 averaged higher on a
y-0-y basis during the oil year 2015-16. The international and domestic prices rose by 2% to 783.9 USD/tonne
and by 6% to Rs.6,331.1/quintal in 2015-16 compared to the corresponding period a year ago.An increase in
requirement of soybean oil for biodiesel production as stated by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency(EPA) supported the price rise. United States is the second largest producer of soyabean oil in the
world followed by China.Also, lower global palm oil production resulted in an increased demand for soyabean
oil thus supporting the price rise.

In December 2016, the international and domestic soyabean oil prices touched a high of 907 USD/tonne
andRs.7,264.5/quintal. The prices in both the markets however declined on a m-o-m basis in each of the
months during January-April 2017.

Higher global soybean oil production is likely to keep the prices under pressure in the coming months
as well. The domestic prices that largely reflect the trend in international prices will also remain
subdued on account of higher domestic soybean oil production in 2016-17

Prices of soyabean oil (that is largely imported) reflected the trend in international prices as it remained weak
during the period April 2013 to March 2016. The international prices were subdued on account of higher
world soyabean oil output during these years. The domestic soyabean oil prices improved thereafter in line
with the rise in international soyabean oil prices. However, the prices remained weak in each of the months
during January-April 2017 on account of higher soyabean oil production globally as well as domestically.

The domestic groundnut oil prices stayed weak during the period April 2013 to December 2014 driven by a
surge in domestic groundnut oil production. After this, the trend in prices improved and the percentage change
in prices on a y-0-y basis remained positive during January 2015 to April 2017. However, prices grew in
single-digit on a y-0-y basis during September 2016 to April 2017. An expected rise in groundnut oil during
the oil year 2016-17 is believed to have created a pressure on the prices

.The domestic mustard oil price trend that remained depressed during April 2013-April 2014 gained
momentum and the y-o-y percentage change in price trend improved after April 2014. The prices grew in
double-digits on a y-0-y basis during May2015 to December 2015 backed by a drop in domestic mustard oil
production. Thereafter, there was a downward trend in yo-y percentage change in prices due to higher mustard
oil production in oil year 2015-16 and a likely higher mustard oil output in the current oil year.
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The profit margins reported by the edible oils industry were the weakest in financial year 2015-16 compared
to the past four years 2011-15. In 2015-16, the industry’s operating margin stood at 2.05% while it had
remained in the range of 3.1%-3.6% in each of the past four years. Similarly, the industry made losses at net
level in 2015-16 compared to net profits made in each of the years during 2011-15. Aggregate sales of 28
edible oil companies that declined in single-digit in the first two quarters of financial year 2016-17 on a y-0-y
basis fell by a steep 24.8% and 30.1%, respectively, in the following two quarters. On the profitability front,
the margins of the industry remained weak in the March 2017 quarter compared to the past seven quarters.
During the March 2017 quarter, the operating margin of the industry stood at 12.5% and net margin at 13.2%.
The financials are impacted by one of the largest players in the industry on account of its significant size.

Concluding remarks

e [India’s edible oil production is expected to rise by 17.4% on a y-0-y basis in 2016-17. Despite this,
the country’s high
dependency on imports will continue as production has been stagnant

e Thus it becomes necessary to encourage the farmers to increase the production of oilseeds
In 2016-17, edible oil imports are expected to remain more or less stable compared to the previous oil
year 2015-16

e backed by an expected growth in edible oil output during the ongoing oil year

e The international palm oil and soyabean oil prices are expected to remain under pressure in the
coming months due to

e higher supplies from the producing nations.

(Source:Edible Oils Industry Report by Credit Analysis & Research Limited June 8,2017-
www.careratings.com)S

GLOBAL FEED INDUSTRY

Animal feeds play a leading role in the global food industry, enabling economic production of animal
proteins throughout the world. Feed is the largest and most important component to ensuring safe,
abundant and affordable animal proteins.

Livestock raising and the consumption of animal products make a crucialcontribution to the economic and
nutritional wellbeing of millions of people around the world. Animal feeds play a leading role in the global
food industry and feed is the largest and most important component to ensuring safe,

abundant and affordable animal proteins.

World compound feed production is fast approaching an estimated 1 billiontonnes annually. Global
commercial feed manufacturing generates an estimated annual turnover of over US $400 billion. Commercial
production or sale of manufactured feed products takes place in more than 130 countries and directly employs
more than a quarter of a million skilled workers, technicians, manager and professionals.
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IFIF and it's Members are keenly aware of the demographic and sustainability challenges which lie ahead of
the food and feed industry. The UN Food and Agricultural Organisation (FAO) estimates that the world will
have to produce ca. 60% more food by 2050 and we believe that animal protein production will grow even
more — meats (poultry/swine/beef) will double, as well as dairy, and

fish production will almost triple by 2050.

One of the challenges is that on top of the almost 1 billion tonnes of feed produced by the feed industry,
around 300 million tonnes of feed is produced directly by on farm mixing. This poses challenges as food
safety authorities do not regularly audit mixing by farmers and regulatory authorities only inspect when there
is a problem. IFIF believes it is vital for the feed industry and for the sustainability of the whole feed and food
chain that clear standards apply throughout the whole feed chain. We believe both industrial and on farm
mixers should be controlled and inspected on a regular basis.

World compound feed production is estimated at one billion tonnes annually. Global commercial feed
manufacturing generates an estimated annual turnover of over US $400 billion

In 2016 world compound feed production reached an estimated at one billion tonnes annually. Global
commercial feed manufacturing generates an estimated annual turnover of over US $400 billion. The last
years have continued to see an increase in the demand for animal protein worldwide, including for livestock,
dairy and fish. Generally we have seen a growth of production particularly in the developing world, with the
developed world remaining more or less stable.

The United Nations Food and Agriculture Organization (FAQO) estimates that by 2050 the demand for food
will grow by 60% and that between 2010 and 2050 production of animal proteins is expected to grow by
around 1.7% per year, with meat production projected to rise by nearly 70%, aquaculture by 90% and dairy by
55%. This already marks a growth factor of almost two, however if we were to extrapolate the growth rates of
the last forty years forward to 2050, thiswould in theory quadruple the needs

Global Compound Feed Production Evolution Of Global Feed
2016(MIO.T) Production(Index100=1999)
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(Source:The Global Feed Industry-International Feed Industry Federation www.ifif.org)
INDIAN CATTLE FEED INDUSTRY
ABSTRACT

Indian feed industry is about 50 years old and it primarily consists of cattle feed and poultry feed segments.
Cattle feed industry in India is gradually evolving into an organized sector and the feed manufactures are
increasingly using modern and sophisticated methods that seek to incorporate best global practices. Indian
cattle feed industry has got high growth potential, given the country’ stop position among the world nations in
respect of livestock population and also the high expected growth rate of about 4 per cent. Compounded Cattle
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Feed (CCF) products, particularly the branded ones is fast gaining popularity India, including in rural areas.
The major drivers for the growing demand for cattle feed are the factors like (i) shrinkage of open land for
cattle grazing, urbanization and resultant shortage of conventionally used cattle feeds, and (ii) introduction of
high vyield cattle requires specialized feeds. Earlier research studies by the present authors based on the
feedback from the farmers have revealed the good growth prospects of the branded cattle feed industry, the
feed consumption pattern and the relatively high share of branded feeds, feed consumption pattern based on
product types (like, pellet and mash), composition of cattle feed market and the relatives hares of major
brands, the major factors influencing the purchasing decisions etc. As a continuation of the earlier studies, this
study makes a closer look into the exact nature of the growth potential of the market from a macro
perspective, feedback from the field study with dealers and industry experts and relative significance of
factors influencing buying decisions.

INTRODUCTION

Cattle feed industry, a major ingredient of animal feed industry is currently evolving from a fragmented
industry into an organized sector. The feed manufactures are increasingly adopting modern and sophisticated
methods in an effort to incorporate best global practices. This industry has got high growth potential in India,
given India’s top position among the world nations in respect of livestock population.

The cattle population is expected to grow at compounded annual growth rate of 4 per cent. The way the rural
farmers makes their purchases of feed and have their buying priorities is quite different from those of their
urban counterparts. Thus, the factors influencing the buying behavior of farmers and their relative significance
needs to ascertained for the meaningful formulation of marketing strategies for cattle feed products. Equally
important is the need to consider the feedback from dealers of such products and also industry experts in this
field.

BRANDED CATTLE FEED INDUSTRY

The concept of branded animal feed as a packaged commodity, though not a very recent concept, is gaining
popularity in the rural folks in the recent past. The packaged feed, as a product, possesses special features like
hygiene,quality, convenience to handle, etc. to its advantage. The age old feeding pattern practiced in India is
a mixed variety consisting of green grass, dry grass, cotton seed cake, coconut cake, rice bran etc. But, as time
elapsed, due to changes both environmental and social, there has been gradual shift from the age-old pattern to
Compounded Cattle Feed (CCF).

The Indian milk scenario witnessed a total metamorphosis by the advent of Operation Flood; thus greatly
increasing the per capita consumption of milk and sparking of high demand for cattle feed. On analyzing the
factors related to the cattle feed demand, it is seen that there can be a positive change in the market demand
for feeds. The major factors contributing to this are: (i) Shrinkage of open land for cattle grazing, urbanization
and resultant shortage of conventionally used cattle feeds, (ii) Introduction of high yield cattle requires
specialized feeds, (iii) urbanization has brought about a marked shift in people’s eating habits with an
increased intake of milk and other cattle-based products, thus resulting in added demand for livestock
products. It is estimated that milk consumption will grow at 2.8 percent per annum.

(Source: Prospects Of Cattle Feed Industry In India And Strategies For Utilizing The Market Potentia-Report
by IASET- www.academia.edu.)
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SUMMARY OF BUSINESS

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our
business plans and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and

Uncertainties. You should read the chapter titled “Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page 17 of
this Red Herring Prospectus, for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements and
also the section “Risk Factors” for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial
condition or results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied
by these forward-looking statements. Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a
particular fiscal are to the twelve-month period ended March 31 of that year.

The financial information used in this section, unless otherwise stated, is derived from our Financial
Information, as restated prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, Companies Act and SEBI Regulations.
The following information is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read together with, the more detailed
financial and other information included in this Red Herring Prospectus, including the information contained
in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Financial Information” beginning on pages 18 and 172,
respectively.

OVERVIEW

We are engaged in the business of de-linting and de-hulling of cotton seeds by mechanical process, oil
extraction from cotton seeds and solvent extraction from cotton seeds oil cake and ground nuts. Our
manufacturing process is in three stages (1) De-linting and de-hulling of Cotton seeds, this process result in
manufacture of shot fiber (linter), and De-linted cotton Seeds (Il) Cotton seeds oil extraction process result in
pre refine cotton seeds oil and cotton seeds oil cake and (I11) Solvent extraction process, result in pre refine
wash oil and de-oil cotton seeds cake.

Cotton linter can be use in manufacturing of papers and as raw materials for manufacture of cellulose, this can
be further process for medical and cosmetic purpose, linter can be broadly classified as a industrial raw
materials. Cotton seeds oil cake, cotton seeds de oil cake and cotton hull are used as animal feeds. Cotton seed
pre refine oil further process by refinery to convert in to edible oil.

Our manufacturing facility is situated at Survey No.54 P, At- Bhunava, Rajkot- Gondal Highway, Dist.
Rajkot. The Registered office of the Company is situated at Imperial Heights Tower- B, Second Floor, and
office No. B- 206, 150ft Ring Road, Opposite Big Bazar, Rajkot-36005, Gujarat.

Our total Income were Rs. 15,756.70 lakhs, Rs.18,326.16 lakhs and Rs. 17,443.76 lakhs and our profit for the
period was Rs. 66.70 lakhs , Rs. 50.72 lakhs and Rs. 136.29 lakhs for the financial years 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively. The revenue contribution from our product category is set forth below:
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Products

For the period ended

Qty
(in Kg)

Manufacturing/ Processing Goods

Septem
ber 2017

% of
total

Qty (in kg)

Revenue For the Financial Year

% of
total

2016-17

Qty (in Kg)

2015-16

% of
total

Qty (in
1))

Animal 12198635.00 | 2873.34 59.41 | 30124065.00 7580.06 48.11 7611231.00 | 2286.31 12.48 | 4761162.0 | 12245 | 7.02
Meals/feeds* 0 0
De-linted cotton 4498382.00 | 1054.46 21.80 | 24490389.00 6605.17 41.92 | 57363057.00 | 12831.5 70.02 | 50115096 | 10004. | 57.36
seeds 8 71
Pre-refine oil 384904.00 234.97 4.86 267550.00 185.98 1.18 3303412.00 | 1919.01 10.47 3107945 | 1823.1 | 10.45
(wash oil) 1
Cotton Linter 668555.00 241.46 4.99 93705.00 36.12 0.23 543420.00 135,51 0.74 199935 4239 | 0.24
Trading Goods
Trading Goods 565544.00 424,16 8.77 462785.00 1346.18 8.45 2162373.20 | 1139.62 6.22 5485250 | 4338.1 | 24.87
6
other by products 0 8.06 0.17 0 3.20 0.02 0 14.13 0.08 0 10.89 | 0.06
Total 18316020.00 | 4836.15 | 100.00 | 55438494.00 | 15,756.60 | 100.00 | 70983493.20 | 18,326.1 | 100.00 | 63669388. | 17443. | 100.
6 00 76

*Animal meals comprise of cotton seeds oil cake, cotton seeds de-oilcake, cotton seeds hulls, ground nuts de oilcake

For the period ended

Revenue For the Financial Year

Qty Septem % of Qty in Kg Qty in kg Qty in Kg
In ber 2017  total % of % of
Particulars Kg 2016-17 total 2015-16  total
Cotton seeds de- 11202175.00 | 2422.85| 50.10 | 30124065.00 7611231.00 4761162.
oil cake 7265.67 | 46.12 2023.32 | 11.05 00| 998.15 | 5.72
Cotton seeds 970660.00 | 149.07 3.08 721130.00 2042182.00 1840791.
husk/hulls 142.31 0.90 262.99 1.44 00| 226.35| 1.30
Cotton seeds 25800.00 | 301.42 6.23 10310.00 0.00
oilcake 112.56 0.71 - - - -
Ground nuts oil 0.00 - - 278745.00 0.00 0.00
cake 59.51 0.38 - - - -
Total 12198635.00 | 2873.34 | 59.41 | 31134250.00 | 7580.06 48.11 | 9653413.00 | 2286.31 | 12.48 | 6601953. | 12245 | 7.02
00 0
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The revenue break up for Domestic and Export Sales is as under:

aF;";‘”'C“' gg?;ember % of total | 2016-17 :{;’talo‘c 2016-15 2015-14

Domestic | 446952 | 81.90 15560.05 | 98.81 | 17829  |97.29 | 17186.75 | 98.53

Export | 358.83 18.10 18765 | 119 |497.16  |271 | 25701 | 147
4828.35 100.00 15,756.70 100.00 | 18,326.16 100.00 17443.76 100.00

Country wise Export Details are as under:

Country Product Amount of sales Rs. (In Lakhs)
Sep-17 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Koria Animal Meals 287.84 - 73.8 -
Japan Animal Meals 3.89 - 83.34 148.11
Seoul Animal Meals 22.45 99.22 - -
Taiwan Animal Meals 8.42 - 34.28 12.2
Incheon Animal Meals - 12.65 - -
China Cotton Linter - - 30.53 42.38
China Cotton Yarn - - 121.17 -
Naariah Animal Meals - - 4591 54.31
(S.Arabia)

Netherland Animal Meals - - 3.16 -
Total 322.60 111.87 392.19 257.00
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OUR BUSINESS ACTIVITY

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

MANUFACTURING/
PROCESSING

TRADING

Cotton (Kapas)
Cotton Bales

Cotton linter
Delinted Cotton Seeds
Cotton seed husk/hulls
Cotton Seeds Oil Cake
Cotton Seeds De-oil Cake
Pre- Refine Wash Qil
Ground Nuts Oil Cake
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PROCESS FLOW CHART

l Cotton Seed
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De-Linting Process

| |
1
De linted .
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Pre refine oil (wash
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The entire cotton seed oil manufacturing process includes several processes. Firstly, cotton seeds are cleaned
to remove the foreign matter such as stones, shale, stick and iron etc. The cleaned cotton seeds are then fed
into a De-linting line machines in which the tight rolls of seeds are spread over high speed circular saws. The
saw scrape off the lint from the seed and the lint is sucked pneumatically into lint beating and cleaning device.

Delinting is generally done in two stages, in the first stage the light cut is taken and in the second stage more
severe cut is taken. Long fiber used in paper and artificial silk industry.

The delinting seeds are then feed into hullers wherein the outer hull of the seed is cracked by Knife-edge
mounted on high speed rotors, this operation is called as De-linting operation. The mixture of hulls and kernel
so produced is passed over reciprocating sieves to separate the kernel and hulls. The kernel portion contains
all the oil as well as proteins. The Cotton seeds hulls are used to feed livestock.

The kernel is fed into a series of expellers consisting of heavy screws working in strong cages. The kernel are
squeezed with pressure as high as 5 to 10 tones per sg. inch. At this pressure the oil is squeezed out through
the slits in the cage and the kernel which are pressed into cakes, called as oil cakes containing about 7% to 8
% oil are discharged through the cage.

The oil cake is further sent to solvent extraction plant, the oil cake is fed into extractor where it is treated with
low boiling petroleum solvent called normal hexane. The hexane dissolves the oil from the cake forming a
solution and the oil content of cake is reduced. The solution of oil in hexane is distilled in specially designed
distillation equipment under vacuum to evaporate the solvent from the oil. The oil thus separated is stored in
the tank.

“cotton seeds cakes”, that are the solid matter that remains once oil has been extracted and pressed from
cotton seeds by using “Oil Expellers Machines”, These “De-oil cake cotton seed cakes”, are widely used in
the industry for feeding cattle. The left out residual oil cake in the expeller is further completely recovered
through solvent extraction process.

COMPETITIVE STRNGTH

1. Leveraging the experience of our promoter

Our Promoters Lavjibhai Savaliya and Lalitkumar Vasoya have more than decade of experience and are
the guiding force behind all the corporate decisions and is responsible for the entire business operations of
the Company along with the team of professionals from various disciplines. Industry knowledge and
understanding also gives us the key competitive advantage enabling us to expand our geographical and
customer presence in existing as well as target markets, while exploring new growth avenues. Our
Promoters are supported by a management team with several years of experience in their respective
domains of sales, marketing, strategy and finance.
2. Strategic Location of our manufacturing facility

Our Manufacturing Facility is strategically located near the source of raw materials to ensure cost savings
and optimum logistic benefits. Our Manufacturing plant is situated in Gondal, Gujarat. In Gujarat there
are many Ginning Mills from where our raw material Cotton Seed is purchased directly from the Ginning
Muills or through the established Distributors network.

BUSINESS STRATEGY
1. Enhancing our customer base

Considering the huge potential of the animal meal/feed, agro food processing and manufacturing industry in
India and in order to capitalize on the growth, we intend to expand our operations to other regions of the
country, besides the western region where we are currently present in order to expand our business.

2. Improving functional efficiencies

Our Company intends to improve efficiencies to achieve cost reductions and have a competitive edge over our
peers. We believe that this can be achieved through continuous process improvement, customer service and
technology development.

3. Leveraging our market skills and relationship
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Leveraging our market skills and relationships is a continuous process in our organization and the skills that
we impart in our people give importance to customers. We aim to do this by leveraging our market skills and
relationships and further enhancing customer satisfaction.

COLLABORATIONS

Our Company has not entered into any collaboration agreements as on date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

OUR RAW MATERIALS

Cotton Seeds
Y AR s

Maharashtra and other parts of India depends on availability, price and quality of cotton seeds. Gujarat is
largest cotton producing state and more than hundred cotton Ginning units are surrounding to our units gives
competitive advantage of location for procurement of raw materials. Raw Material Cotton Seed is purchased
from the Ginning Mills and the distributors dealing in trading of Cotton Seeds.

SWOT ANALYSIS

Strengths Threats

= Experienced Management Team = High Competition

= Locational Advantage = Changing Technology
Weaknesses Opportunities

= Price of Raw Material
= Timely Availability of Raw Material

= Expanding New Geographical Markets

= Export Markets

= Enhancing functional Efficiency

= Forward integration of edible oil

= Forward integration of cotton linter bleaching
process for medicated and cosmetic cotton

CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILISATION

Capacity Existing Projected

Utilization 2014-15 ‘ 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Production

capacity 13,50,00,00 | 13,50,00,00 13,50,00,00

(units in Kg/pa) | 13,50,00,000 | 13,50,00,000 0 0| 13,50,00,000 0
7,42,50,000 | 8,77,50,00,0.0 | 10,12,50,00

Production 0 0

(units in Kg/pa) 6,01,22,384 | 7,10,04,462 | 5,60,23,744

% of 55.00% 65.00% 75.00%

Utilization 44.54% 52.60% 41.50%

COMPETITION

Our Company operates processing of cotton seeds and extraction of cotton oil which faces competition from
domestic as well as international players. Competition emerges not only from the organized and unorganized
sector but also from small and big players. Its competitiveness depends on several factors including quality,
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price and customer service. Internationally, competition typically comes from low-cost operations in other
emerging countries.

We compete with our competitors on the basis of product quality, price and reliability. We continuously
strive to increase our distribution channel to increase our domestic presence. We intend to continue compete
to capture more market share and manage our growth in an optimal way by improving our satisfying
customer‘s demands, achieving operating efficiencies, etc.S

END USERS

Our products Cotton seeds de-oil cake, cotton seeds husk/hulls, cotton seeds oil cake form part of the animal
feed which are sales through brokers and distributors network in domestic and international market, pre refine
oil mainly sold to oil refinery and cotton linter sold to various industry with multiple application, like
manufacture of papers, medicated and cosmetic cotton and manufacturer of cellulose.

MARKETING

The efficiency of the marketing and sales network is critical success of our Company. Our success lies in the
strength of our relationship with the customers who have been associated with our Company. Our team
through their relevant experience and good rapport with these customers owing to timely and quality delivery
of service plays an instrumental role in creating and expanding a work platform for our Company.

We believe our relationship with our customers is strong and established as we receive repeated orders. To
retain our customers, our team regularly interacts with them and focuses on gaining an insight into the
additional needs of customers. We intend to expand our existing customer base by increasing our presence in
existing markets and reaching out to other geographical areas. Our marketing team is ready to take up
challenge so as to scale new heights.

INSURANCE

Our Company has insurance coverage which we consider reasonably sufficient to cover all normal risks
associated with our operations and which we believe is in accordance with the industry standards. We have
taken Standard Fire & Special Perils Policy for a substantial majority of our assets at our office and factory.
Our policies are subject to customary exclusions and customary deductibles. We believe that our insurance
coverage is adequate for our business needs and operations. We will continue to review our policies to ensure
adequate insurance coverage is maintained.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We have applied for registration of the following Trademarks with Trademarks Registry, Government of
India. The details of trademark applications are as under:

Sr. Trademark Trademark Class Applicant Application Date of
\[o} Type \[o} Application
1 Device 35 Shree Ram | 3665037 October 29,
Proteins Private 2017
— Limited
REE RAM
——proceins kkd——

LAND AND PROPERTY
I.  Land and Properties owned by the Company.

Location of the Property Document Date  Purchased From

1 Survey No. 54 P, N.H. 8 B, Nr. | March 16, 2009 Batukbhai Bhikhabhai Savaliya
Pan Agri Export at.s Bhunava,
Ta. Gondal ,Dist. Rajkot -
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Location of the Property

360311 (India)

Document Date  Purchased From

B-206, The Imperial Heights
Opposite Big Bazaar, 150 Ft.
Ring Road, Rajkot -
360005Gujarat — India

October 04, 2016 | Mr. Sudhir Patel
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATMENTS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS RESTATED
ANNEXURE-I

Amount in Lakhs
As at As on March 31,
Septemb 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Particulars er 30,
2017

I.EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share capital

(b) Reserves and surplus 482.18 | 443.43 | 376.72 326.00 189.71 60.49
Sub-Total 1982.18 | 1943.43 | 1876.72 951.00 814.71 685.49
2. Share application money
pending allotment

1500.00 | 1500.00 | 1500.00 625.00 625.00 625.00

Sub-Total

3. Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 1807.83 | 1595.97 | 1868.53 3035.50 2984.19 | 1772.82
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - - - - 4.81 24.33
(c) Other Non Current Liabilities 4.82 5.00 3.75 3.06 2.10 1.70
(d) Long-term Provisions - - - - - -
Sub-Total 1812.64 | 1600.97 | 1872.28 3038.57 2991.09 | 1798.86
4. Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings 3112.74 | 3127.04 | 3119.25 2496.42 3139.14 | 2575.21
(b) Trade payables 794.14 | 2021.51 | 1343.69 2864.46 53.74 323.13
(c) Other current liabilities 30.82 69.32 | 158.65 1016.70 210.62 0.88
(d) Short-term provisions 37.18 12.85 18.99 34.08 24.09 0.60
Sub-Total 3974.88 | 5230.72 | 4640.58 6411.66 3427.59 | 2899.81
TOTAL 7769.71 | 8775.11 | 8389.58 | 10401.22 7233.39 | 5384.16
Il. ASSETS

1. Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets 1074.95 | 1145.91 | 1302.39 1491.28 1708.09 | 1988.87
(b) Non-current investments 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 44.32 39.35 28.16 11.71 - -
(d) Long-term loans and advances 13.00 13.00 9.35 9.35 446.73 12.44
(e) Other Non Current Assets - - - - - -
Sub-Total 1132.42 | 1198.42 | 1340.06 1512.49 2154.98 | 2001.46

2. Current assets
(a) Current investments - - - - - B
(b) Inventories 3712.79 | 3700.07 | 3186.38 2942.14 3032.13 | 2328.81

(c) Trade receivables 2805.32 | 3789.38 | 3721.67 5814.40 1770.18 470.87
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 11.84 9.58 31.83 26.06 132.35 109.16
(e) Short-term loans and advances 107.34 77.67 | 109.65 106.13 143.75 473.87
(f) Other Current Assets - - - - - -
Sub-Total 6637.28 | 7576.70 | 7049.53 | 8888.73 5078.41 | 3382.70
TOTAL 7769.71 | 8775.11 | 8389.58 | 10401.22 7233.39 | 5384.16
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AS RESTATED

ANNEXURE-II

Particulars

As at
September

2017

Amount in Lakhs

As on March 31

2016

2015

2014

2013

I.Revenue from operations 4867.86 | 15756.70 | 18326.16 | 17443.76 | 15728.98 | 11562.21
I1.0ther income 3.73 23.38 31.35 22.84 25.11 50.41
I11. Total Revenue (1 + 11) 4871.59 | 15780.08 | 18357.51 | 17466.60 | 15754.09 | 11612.63
IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 3034.81 | 7342.88 583.98 | 11803.27 | 13486.41 | 3459.66
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1892.35 | 8478.53 | 16690.84 | 3950.02 2003.54 | 8473.70
Changes in inventories of finished (410.30) | (749.55) 299.14 842.37 | (651.16) | (943.54)
goods work-in-progress and Stock-

in-Trade

Employee benefits expense 13.73 33.16 38.66 35.18 21.35 24.94
Finance costs 176.50 392.43 434.29 474.31 479.36 465.16
Depreciation and amortization 70.96 163.40 200.12 219.98 257.32 148.36
expense

Other expenses 38.09 23.25 35.47 21.69 47.58 23.05
Total expenses 4816.15 | 15684.10 | 18282.50 | 17346.82 | 15644.39 | 11651.32
V. Profit before exceptional and 55.44 95.99 75.01 119.77 109.70 (38.69)
extraordinary items and tax (I11-

V)

VI. Exceptional items - - - - - -
VII. Profit before extraordinary 55.44 95.99 75.01 119.77 109.70 (38.69)
items and tax (V - VI)

VIII. Extraordinary Items-

IX. Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 55.44 95.99 75.01 119.77 109.70 (38.69)
X. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 21.65 40.48 40.74 23.96 20.90 -
(2) Deferred tax (4.97) | (11.19 (16.45) (16.52) (19.52) 24.33
(3) MAT Credit - - - (23.96) (20.90) -
(4) Current tax expense relating to - - - - - -
prior years

XI. Profit (Loss) for the period 38.76 66.70 50.72 136.29 129.22 (63.03)
from continuing operations (VII-

VIII)

XII. Profit/(loss) from

discontinuing operations

XIll. Tax expense of discontinuing

operations

XIV. Profit/(loss) from

Discontinuing operations (after

tax) (XI1-X111)

XV. Profit (Loss) for the period 38.76 66.70 50.72 136.29 129.22 (63.03)
(X1 + XIV)

XVI Earnings per equity share:

(1) Basic & Diluted 0.26 0.44 0.37 2.18 2.07 (1.01)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW AS RESTATED ANNEXURE-I111
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As on March 31
September 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
30, 2017
CASH FLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Restated Net profit Before Tax and 55.44 95.99 75.01 119.77 109.70 | (38.69)

Extraordinary Iteams
Adjustments For:

Depreciation 70.96 | 163.40 200.12 219.98 257.32 148.36
Interest Received (0.56) (1.04) (3.70) (18.37) (0.91) (2.32)
Interest and Finance Charges 176.50 | 392.43 434.29 474.31 479.36 465.16
Operating Profit before working 302.34 | 650.77 705.71 795.69 845.47 572.50

capital changes
Adjustment For:

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories (12.72) | (513.69) | (244.24) 89.99 | (703.32) | (486.03)
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade 984.06 | (67.71) | 2092.73 | (4044.22) | (1299.31) | (152.70)
receivables

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current - - - - - 4.68
Assets

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non - - - - - 1.87
Current Assets

Decrease/(Increase) in Short Term (29.68) 31.98 (3.52) 37.62 330.12 | (25.35)
Loans and Advances
Decrease/(Increase) in Long Term - (3.65) - 437.37 | (434.29) 236.17
Loans and Advances
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade | (1227.37) | 677.82 | (1520.76) | 2810.72 | (269.39) | (63.82)
Payables
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Current (38.49) | (89.34) | (858.05) 806.08 209.75 | (33.78)
Liabilities

(Decrease)/Increase in Short Term 24.32 (6.13) (15.09) 9.99 23.49 (9.03)
Provisions

(Decrease)/Increase in Long Term

Provisions

(Decrease)/Increase in Other Non (0.18) 1.25 0.69 0.97 0.39 1.70
current Liabilities

Cash Generated from Operations 2.28 | 681.30 157.47 944.22 | (1,297.1) 46.23
Taxes Paid 21.65 40.48 40.74 - - -

Net Cash From /(Used In ) (19.36) | 640.83 116.74 944.22 | (1,297.1) 46.23
Operating Activities (A)
Cash Flow From Investing - - - - - -

Activities

(Purchase)/Sale Of Fixed Assets/ - (6.92) (11.23) (3.17) 2345 | (95.92)
Capital Work In Progress

Decrease/(Increase) in Non Current - - - - - (0.16)
investments

Interest Received 0.56 1.04 3.70 18.37 0.91 2.32
Net Cash From /(Used In ) 0.56 (5.88) (7.53) 15.20 24.36 | (93.76)

Investing Activities (B)
Cash Flow From Financing
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Particulars As at As on March 31

September 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

30, 2017
Activities
Proceeds from Issue of Shares - - 875.00 - - -
Interest and Finance Charges (176.50) | (392.43) | (434.29) | (474.31) | (479.36) | (465.16)
(Decrease)/Increase in Short Term (14.30) 7.79 622.83 | (642.72) 563.93 343.42
Borrowing
(Decrease)/Increase in Long Term 211.86 | (272.56) | (1166.97) 51.32 | 1211.36 264.84
Borrowing
Net Cash From Financing 21.06 | (657.20) | (103.44) | (1065.71) | 1295.94 143.11
Activities (c)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash 2.25 | (22.25) 5.77 | (106.29) 23.19 95.58
(A)+(B)+(C)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the 9.58 31.83 26.06 132.35 109.16 13.58
beginning of the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the 11.84 9.58 31.83 26.06 132.35 109.16

end of the year

I.  The Cash Flow statement has been prepared under Indirect method as per Accounting Standard-3 "Cash

Flow Satements"

Il. Figures in Brackets represent outflows

I11. The above statement should be read with the Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Statement of
Profit and loss, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts as appearing in Annexure 1,11,

IV(A) respectively.
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THE ISSUE

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS RED HERRING PROSPECTUS

Particulars Details of Equity Shares
Upto 64,20,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully

Public Issue of Equity Shares paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. [@]/- per Equity
Share aggregating Rs. [@®] lakhs

Of which:

Upto 3,24,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully
Market Maker Reservation Portion paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs [®]/- per Equity
Share aggregating Rs. [®]lakhs

Upto 60,96,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully
paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. [@]/- per Equity
Share aggregating Rs. [e®] lakhs

Of which:

Upto 30,48,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. [@]/- per Equity
Share aggregating Rs. [®] lakhs will be available for allocation
for allotment to Retail Individual Investors of up to Rs. 2 lakhs
Upto 30,48,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 /- each
fully paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. [®]/- per
Equity Share aggregating Rs. [®] lakhs will be available for
allocation to investors above Rs. 2 lakhs

Net Issue to the Public*

Pre and Post Issue Equity Shares

:Eszﬂ:ety Shares outstanding prior to the 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue | Upto 2,14,20,000 Equity Shares

For further details please refer chapter titled “Objects of the
Use of Proceeds(Objects of the Issue) Issue” beginning on page [®] of this Red Herring Prospectus for
information on use of Issue Proceeds

Notes:

The Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on
November 07, 2017] and by the shareholders of our Company vide a special resolution passed pursuant to
section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on November 10,
2017.

*This Issue is being made in terms of Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, as amended from
time to time.

As per Regulation 43(4) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as amended, as present issue the allocation in the
net Issue to the public category shall be made as follows:

a) Minimum fifty percent to retail individual investors; and

b) Remaining to

i. Individual applicants other than retail individual investors; and

ii. Other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of specified securities
applied for;

c¢) The unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in (a) or (b) above may be allocated to the
applicants in the other category.
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If the retail individual investor category is entitled to more than fifty per cent on proportionate basis,
accordingly the retail individual investors shall be allocated that higher percentage

*Note: Number of shares may need to be adjusted for lot size upon determination of issue price.

For further details please refer to section titled ‘Issue Information’ beginning on page 210 of this Red Herring

Prospectus
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our company was incorporated as Shree Ram Protiens Private Limited under the provision of the companies
Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation dated August 29, 2008. Consequently, it was converted into a
public limited company pursuant to shareholders resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting of our
Company held on September 28, 2017 and the name of our Company was changed to Shree Ram Protiens
Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon Conversion of Private Company to Public
Limited dated October 06, 2017 was issued by Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Ahmedabad. Subsequently
the Name our Company was Changed From Shree Ram Protiens Limited to Shree Ram Proteins Limited vide
fresh certificate of Incorporation dated November 29, 2017 issued by Registrar of Companies Ahmedabad.
The Corporate Identification Number of our Company is U01405GJ2008PLC054913.For details of
Incorporation, Change of Name and Registered Office of our Company, please refer to chapter titled ‘Our
History and Certain Other Corporate Matters’ beginning on page 146 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

Shree Ram Proteins Limited
Imperial Heights Tower-B,

Second Floor, Office No. B-206,

150 Ft Ring Road,

Opp Big Bazar Rajkot

Gujarat 360005 India

Tel: 0281-2581152

Fax:Not Available

Email: info@shreeramproteins.com
Website: www.shreeramproteins.com
Corporate Identification Number: U01405GJ2008PLC054913

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

Registrar of Companies,

ROC Bhavan , Opp Rupal Park Society,
Behind Ankur Bus Stop,

Naranpura, Ahmedabad-380013
Gujarat,India

Website: www.mca.gov.in

DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE

EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, C/1, G Block,

Bandra Kurla Complex

Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051,

Maharashtra, India

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Sr.

No. Name i Address Designation

Zenith, 1 Jaypark, Parnkutir
02295305 | Society, Nana Mova Road, Rajkot
52 360001 Gujarat India

Lavjibhai  Valjibhai
Savaliya

Whole  Time
Director
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Designation

Lalitkumar Shri Ram Gurudev Park -1, Bh- Manaain
2 | Grandulal vasova | 38 02296254 | Ammath Temple, Kalawad Road, Direct‘qorg
y Rajkot 360005 Gujarat India
. . Shri Ram Gurudev Park-1, Bh-
3 f/';'suosha Chandubhai | 29 06889294 | Amarnath Temple, Kalawad Road, | Director
y Rajkot 360005 Gujarat India
Aaradhana Homes-1, Flat No. 402, -
Manhar Plot, Street No. 9 Additional
4 Utsav Rajpara 25 07973228 ' s Independent
Mangala Main Road, Rajkot- Director
360002
o e e | Asaons
5 Anushree Ganatra 25 07973335 Raiya Road, Rajkot 360007 In_dependent
. . Director
Guijarat India

For further details of our Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page
149 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Bhupendra Bhadani

Shree Ram Proteins Limited
Imperial Heights Tower-B,

Second Floor, Office No. B-206,
150 Ft Ring Road,

Opp Big Bazar Rajkot

Gujarat 360005 India

Tel: 0281-2581152

Fax: Not Available

Email: info@shreeramproteins.com
Website: www.shreeramproteins.com

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERs

Rameshkumar Bhadani

Shree Ram Proteins Limited
Imperial Heights Tower-B,

Second Floor, Office No. B-206,
150 Ft Ring Road,

Opp Big Bazar Rajkot

Gujarat 360005 India

Tel: 0281-2581152

Fax: Not Available

Email: info@shreeramproteins.com
Website: www.shreeramproteins.com

Investors can contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, the BRLM or the Registrar to
the Issue in case of any pre-lssue or post-lIssue related problems, such as non receipt of letters of
Allotment, non credit of Allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account, non receipt of
refund orders and non receipt of funds by electronic mode.
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All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to the
relevant Designated Intermediary with whom the ASBA Form was submitted. The Bidder should give full
details such as name of the sole or first Bidder, ASBA Form number, Bidder DP ID, Client ID, PAN, date of
the ASBA Form, address of the Bidder, number of Equity Shares applied for and the name and address of the
Designated Intermediary where the ASBA Form was submitted by the ASBA Bidder.

Further, the investor shall also enclose the Acknowledgment Slip from the Designated Intermediaries in
addition to the documents/information mentioned hereinabove.

For all issue related queries and for redressal of complaints, bidders may also write to the Book Running Lead
Manager. All complaints, queries or comments received by Stock Exchange/ SEBI shall be forwarded to the
Book Running Lead Manager, who shall respond to the same.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

H B Kalaria & Associates

A 601/602 The Imperial Hieghts,
Opp Big Bazar,150" Ring Road
Rajkot-360005,Gujarat, India

Tel No.: 0281-2581501

Email: hblkalariya@gmail.com
Contact Person: Hasmukh B Kalaria
Firm Registration No.: 104571W
Membership No.: 042002

PEER REVIEWED AUDITOR

N. K. Aswani & Co.

Tel: 26402552-53

Contact Person: Mr. N. K. Aswani

Firm Registration No.: 100738W

M/s. N. K. Aswani & Co holds a peer reviewed certificate dated November 13, 2013 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER

Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited
406-408, Keshava Premises, Behind Family Court,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)

Mumbai- 400051, Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6194 6700

Fax: + 91 22 2659 8690

Email: ipo@pantomathgroup.com

Website: www.pantomathgroup.com

Contact Person: Lokesh Shah

SEBI Registration No: INM000012110

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai 400083, Maharashtra, India.

Tel: 022-49186200

Fax: 022-49186195
Email:srpl.ipo@linkintime.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.co.in
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Contact Person: Shanti Gopalkrishnan
SEBI Registration Number: INRO00004058

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE

M V Kini, Law Firm

Kini House, 216/263, 1% Floor, Near Citi Bank,

D.N. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra, India
Tel: +91 22 22612527/28/29

Fax: +91 22 22612530

E-mail: vidisha@mvkini.com

Contact Person: Vidisha Krishan

Website: www.mvkini.com

BANKER TO THE COMPANY

Corporation Bank

1° Floor, Shop No. 101,

Gayatri Commercial Center,

Opp Piramal School,

Kalawad Road, Rajkot

Tel: +91 (0281) 2589790

Email: cb0488@corpbank.co.in
Website: www.corpbank.in
Contact Person: Branch Manager

PUBLIC ISSUE BANK /BANKER TO THE ISSUE/ REFUND BANKER

ICICI Bank Limited

Capital Market Division,1* Floor, 122
Mistry Bhavan, Dinshaw Vachha Road
Backbay Reclamation, Churchgate,
Mumbai-400 020

Tel: (91) 022 66818923/8923/924/932
Fax: (91) 022 22611138/226

Email: shardha.salaria@icicibank.com
Contact Person: Ms Shradha Salaria
Website: www.icicibank.com

SEBI Registration Number: INBI00000004

SYNDICATE MEMBER

Pantomath Stock Brokers Private Limited

406-408, Keshava Premises, Behind Family Court,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051,
Mabharashtra, India

Tel: - +91 22 6194 6774

Fax: - +91 22 2659 8690

E-mail: broking@pantomathgroup.com

Contact Person: Mahavir Toshniwal

Website: www.pantomathbroking.com

SEBI Registration Number: INZ000068338

DESIGNATED INTERMEDIARIES

Self Certified Syndicate Banks
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The lists of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the Applications Supported by Blocked
Amount (ASBA) Process are provided on http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/detail/32931/yes/List-of-
Self-Certified-Syndicate-Banks-SCSBsfor- Syndicate-ASBA. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs
collecting the Application Form, please refer to the above-mentioned SEBI link.

Registered Brokers

Bidders can submit Bid cum Application Forms in the Issue using the stock brokers network of the Stock
Exchanges, i.e., through the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. The list of the Registered Brokers,
including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites of
the National Stock Exchange of India, as updated from time to time. In relation to ASBA Bids submitted to
the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the Broker Centres named
by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum Application Forms from the Registered Brokers
will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in ) and updated from time to time.

Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept Bid cum Applications forms at the Designated RTA Locations,
including details such as address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided on the website of Stock
Exchange at National Stock Exchange India Limited, as updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept Bid cum Application Forms at the Designated CDP Locations,
including details such as name and contact details, are provided on the website of Stock Exchange at National
Stock Exchange India Limited, as updated from time to time. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by the
respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries
will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in ) and updated from time to time.

CREDIT RATING
This being an issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.
IPO GRADING

Since the Issue is being made in terms of Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, there is no
requirement of appointing an IPO Grading agency.

INTER-SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Since Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager to this Issue, a
statement of inter se allocation of responsibilities among Book Running Lead Manager is not applicable.

APPRAISAL AND MONITORING AGENCY

As per regulation 16(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement of Monitoring Agency is not
mandatory if the Issue size is below Rs. 50,000 Lakhs. Since the Issue size is only of Rs. [e] lakhs, our
Company has not appointed any monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee of our Company, would be monitoring the utilization of the
proceeds of the Issue.

EXPERT OPINION

Except the report of the Peer Reviewed Auditor on statement of tax benefits and report on restated financials
for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016, 2015, 2014 and 2013 as included in this Red herring Prospectus, our
Company has not obtained any expert opinion.

BOOK BUILDING PROCESS

Book building, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Red
Herring Prospectus within the Price Band. The Price Band shall be determined by our Company in
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consultation with the BRLM in accordance with the Book Building Process, and advertised in all editions of a
widely circulated English Newspaper, all editions of a widely circulated Hindi Newspaper and a widely
circulated Gujrati Newspaper, Gujrati being the regional language of Gujrat, where our registered office is
situated at least five working days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening date. The Issue Price shall be determined by
our Company, in consultation with the BRLM in accordance with the Book Building Process after the
Bid/Issue Closing Date. Principal parties involved in the Book Building Process are:-

*  Our Company;

« The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited, the
Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediaries registered with SEBI/ registered as brokers with National
Stock Exchange of India Limited and eligible to act as Underwriters. The Syndicate Member(s) will be
appointed by the BRLM;

» The Registrar to the Issue and;

» The Designated Intermediaries

This Issue is being made through the 100 per cent Book Building Process wherein 50 per cent of the Issue
shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders and the balance shall be offered to QIBs and Non-
Institutional Investors. Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, allocation to all
categories in the Net Issue, shall be made on a proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion where allotment
to each Retail Individual Bidders shall not be less than the minimum bid lot, subject to availability of Equity
Shares in Retail Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be allotted on a proportionate
basis. Under-subscription, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other
category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the BRLM and
the Stock Exchange.

All Bidders (excluding Anchor Investors) can participate in the Issue only through the ASBA process. Anchor
Investors are not permitted to participate through the ASBA process. In accordance with the SEBI
Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size of their Bids
(in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual Bidders can
revise or withdraw their Bids prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date. Further, Anchor Investors cannot withdraw
their Bids after the Anchor Investor Bid/lssue Period. The allocation in the net Issue to the public category
shall be made as follows:

a) Minimum fifty percent to retail individual investors; and

b) Remaining to

i. Individual applicants other than retail individual investors; and

ii. Other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of specified securities
applied for;

c¢) The unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in (a) or (b) above may be allocated to the
applicants in the other category.

If the retail individual investor category is entitled to more than fifty per cent on proportionate basis,
accordingly the retail individual investors shall be allocated that higher percentage

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time and
the investors are advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a
Bid or application in the Issue.

For further details on the method and procedure for Bidding, please see section entitled “Issue Procedure” on
page 220 of this Red Herring Prospectus

Ilustration of Book Building and Price Discovery Process (Investors should note that this example is solely
for illustrative purposes and is not specific to the Issue) Bidders can bid at any price within the price band. For
instance, assume a price band of Rs. 20 to Rs. 24 per equity share, Issue size of 3,000 equity shares and receipt
of five bids from bidders, details of which are shown in the table below. A graphical representation of the
consolidated demand and price would be made available at the bidding centers during the bidding period. The
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illustrative book below shows the demand for the equity shares of the issuer company at various prices and is
collated from bids received from various investors.

500 24 500 16.67%

1,000 23 1,500 50.00%
1,500 22 3,000 100.00%
2,000 21 5,000 166.67%
2,500 20 7,500 250.00%

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the issuer is able to
Issue the desired number of shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., Rs. 22 in the above example.
The issuer, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager will finalize the Issue price at or below such
cut-off price, i.e., at or below Rs. 22/-. All bids at or above this Issue price and cut-off bids are valid bids and
are considered for allocation in the respective categories.

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding:

1. Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled “Issue Procedure” on page 220. of this Red Herring
Prospectus);

2. Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid
cum Application Form;

3. Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID and Client ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form.
Based on these parameters, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain the Demographic Details of the Bidders
from the Depositories.

4. Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the
officials appointed by the courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the
securities market, for Bids of all values ensure that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the
Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The exemption for Central or State Governments and
officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in Sikkim is subject to the Depositary
Participant’s verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting sufficient
documentary evidence in support of their claims

5. Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Red Herring
Prospectus and in the Bid cum Application Form;

BID / OFFER PROGRAMME

An indicative timetable in respect of the Issue is set out below:

Event Indicative Date

Bid/Issue Opened Date Tuesday, January 23 2018
Bid/lIssue Closed Date Thursday, January 25, 2018
Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock On or before Wednesday, January
Exchange 31, 2018

On or before Thursday February

Initiation of Refunds 01, 2018

On or before
Friday, February 02, 2018
Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock On or before
Exchange Monday, February 05, 2018

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat Accounts of Allottees

The above timetable is indicative and does 